
Steve Crisafulli 
Speaker 

Civil Justice Subcommittee 

Tuesday, February 10, 2015 
10:30 AM-1:30PM 

Sumner Hall (404 HOB) 

MEETING PACKET 

Kathleen Passidomo 
Chair 



Start Date and Time: 

End Date and Time: 

Location: 

Duration: 

Committee Meeting Notice 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

Civil Justice Subcommittee 

Tuesday, February 10, 2015 10:30 am 

Tuesday, February 10, 2015 01:30pm 

Sumner Hall (404 HOB) 

3.00 hrs 

Consideration of the following bill(s): 

HB 133 Sexual Offenses by Plasencia 

HB 283 Transfers to Mmors by Berman 

HB 307 Mobile Homes by Latvala 

HB 343 Estates by Moraitis 

HB 383 Private Property R1ghts by Edwards, Perry 

NOTICE FINALIZED on 02/03/2015 15:33 by Ingram.Michele 

02/03/2015 3.33:07PM Leagis ® Page 1 of 1 





HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS 

BILL#: HB 133 Sexual Offenses 
SPONSOR(S): Plasencia 
TIED BILLS: None IDEN./SIM. BILLS: None 

REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST 

1) Civil Justice Subcommittee Malcolm 

2) Justice Appropriations Subcommittee 

3) Judiciary Committee 

SUMMARY ANALYSIS 

STAFF DIRECTOR or 

BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF 

Bond 

A statute of limitations is an absolute bar to the filing of a legal case after a date set by law. The bill extends the 
statutes of limitation applicable to civil cases involving sexual battery where the victim is 16 years old or older 
to 10 years; it also extends the criminal statute of limitations for sexual battery where the victim is an adult to 
10 years. 

The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local government. 

The bill has an effective date of July 1, 2015. 

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives. 
STORAGE NAME. h0133 CJS DOCX 
DATE: 2/6/2015 



FULL ANALYSIS 

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS 

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES: 

A statute of limitations is an absolute bar to the filing of a legal case after a date set by law. The date is 
commonly based on the time that has elapsed since the action giving rise to the case occurred. Laws 
creating statutes of limitation specify when the time period begins, how long the limitations period runs, 
and circumstances by which the running of the statutes may be tolled (suspended). 

The prohibition on ex post facto laws in the state and federal constitutions 1 applies to laws that extend 
a statute of limitations. A law that extends a statute of limitations may only delay the conclusion of the 
limitations period, it cannot revive a previously time-barred action. Accordingly, if the limitations period 
on a case has already expired, any extension created by this bill will not serve to revive the action.2 

The title of the bill, the "43 Days Initiative Act," comes from a Florida resident who was the victim of a 
sexual battery. Unaware of the four-year criminal statute of limitations, the victim did not report the 
crime to law enforcement until four years and 43 days after the crime, which meant that no charges 
could be brought against the offender.3 

Civil Statutes of Limitations Applicable to Sexual Battery 

Chapter 95, F.S., governs the statut~ of limitations for civil actions. In general, the statute of limitations 
begins when "the last element constituting the cause of action occurs."4 The statute of limitations for 
most torts, 5 including those related to sexual battery, 6 is 4 years from the date of injury.7 However, s. 
95.11 (9), F.S., provides that there is no limitations period for sexual battery committed on victims under 
age 16.8 

Effect of Bill - Civil Cases 

The bill amends s. 95.11 (a), F.S., to provide that the statute of limitations for a civil action based on a 
sexual battery on a victim 16 years of age or older is extended from four years to 10 years after the act 
is committed. The extension of limitations does not apply to any action that will be barred on or before 
July 1, 2015. 

Criminal Statutes of Limitation Applicable to Sexual Battery 

Section 794.011, F.S., identifies numerous sexual battery crimes, commonly referred to as rape. 9 

Section 775.15, F.S., sets forth the statutes of limitation applicable to criminal prosecutions for sexual 
battery and provides that the time for prosecution of a criminal case starts to run on the day after the 
offense is committed. An offense is deemed to have been committed either when every element of the 
offense has occurred, or, if the legislative purpose to prohibit a continuing course of conduct plainly 

1 Article I, s. 9, U.S.Const.; Article I, s. 10, Fla.Const. 
2 Stogner v. California, 539 U.S. 607, 632-33 (2003) 
3 43 Days Initiative, My Story, http.//www.43daysinitiative.org/#lmystory/c11nf (last accessed Feb. 4, 2015). 
4 Section 95.031(1), F.S. 
5 A tort is a private or c1vil wrong or injury for which a court Will provide a remedy in the form of an action for damages. An 
intentional tort is a tort or wrong perpetrated by one who intends to do that which the law has declared wrong. 
6 Section 794.011 (1 )(h), F.S., defines sexual battery as "oral, anal, or vaginal penetration by, or union with, the sexual 
organ of another or the anal or vaginal penetration of another by any other object; however, sexual battery does not 
include an act done for a bona fide medical purpose." 
7 Sections 95 11(3)(o), F.S. 
8 Section 95 11 (9), F.S., does not apply to act1ons that were t1me-barred on or before July 1, 2010 
9 See Note 7 for definition of sexual battery. · 
STORAGE NAME: h0133 CJS DOCX PAGE: 2 
DATE. 2/6/2015 



appears, at the time when the course of conduct or the defendant's duplicity in the course of conduct ;_ 
terminated. 10 

Under current law, there is no statute of limitations for first-degree felony sexual battery crimes where 
the victim is a minor. 11 Nor is there a statute of limitations for any sexual battery crime where the victim 
is under 16 years old. 12 Only two sexual battery offenses where the victim is a minor aged 16 or 17 
years have an applicable three-year statute of limitations under current law: sexual battery without the 
use physical force and violence likely to cause serious personal injury- a second-degree felony; 13 and 
solicitation of sexual battery by a person in a position of familial or custodial authority to a person less 
than 18 years of age - a third-degree felony. 14 As to these two offenses, the applicable statute of 
limitations does not commence until the earlier of the date that the minor reaches 18 years of age or 
the crime is reported to law enforcement.15 Moreover, if the sexual battery is a first- or second-degree 
felony and is reported to law enforcement within 72 hours after the commission of the crime, there is no 
statute of limitations. 16 

In cases of sexual battery crimes against victims 18 years of age or older, current law provides that if 
the offense is reported to law enforcement within 72 hours of the offense, there is no statute of 
limitations. 17 If the offense is not reported within 72 hours, the statute of limitations is either four years 
for first-degree felony sexual battery or three years for second-degree felony sexual battery.18 

In addition to the time periods for minors and adults stated above, an offender may be prosecuted 
within one year after the date on which the identity of the offender is established, or should have been 
established by the exercise of due diligence, through the analysis of deoxyribonucleic acid (DNA) 
evidence, if a sufficient portion of the evidence collected at the time of the original investigation and 
tested for DNA is preserved and available for testing by the accused. 19 

Effect of Bill - Criminal Cases 

This bill amends the statute of limitations applicable to sexual battery criminal cases, s. 775.15, F.S., to 
provide that the statute of limitations for first- or second-degree sexual battery committed against a 
victim 18 years of age or older is extended from three or four years as the case may be to 10 years 
from the date of the crime. The provision providing for no statute of limitations when the crime is report 
within 72 hours of its commission is retained in law. 

This change applies to any such offense except one already time-barred on or before July 1, 2015. This 
provision makes the change retroactive to previously committed offenses, provided that the statute of 
limitations did not run out of time prior to July 1, 2015. 

B. SECTION DIRECTORY: 

Section 1 provides a name for the act. 

10 Section 775.15{3), F.S. 
11 /d. at (13)(b). 
12 /d. at (13)(c). 
13 Section 794.011 {5)(c), F.S. 
14 Section 794 011 {B)( a), F.S. 
15 Section 775.15(13)(a), F.S. 
16 /d. 
17 /d. at (14). 
18 First-degree felony sexual battery is defined ins. 794.011(4)(b), F.S., as non-consensual sexual battery under a list of 
enumerated circumstances, including, when the victim is physically helpless to resist, the victim is threatened, the victim is 
physically or mentally incapacitated, and the offender is a law enforcement officer. Second-degree felony sexual battery is 
defined ins. 794 011(5)(b), F.S., as non-consensual sexual battery without the use of physical force or violence likely to 
cause serious personal injury. · 
19 Section 775.15{8), F.S. 
STORAGE NAME h0133 CJS DOCX PAGE: 3 
DATE. 2/6/2015 



Section 2 amends s. 95.11, F.S., regarding the statute of limitations for civil actions. 

Section 3 amends s. 775.15, F .S., regarding the statute of limitations for criminal actions. 

Section 4 provides an effective date of July 1, 2015. 

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT 

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT: 

1. Revenues: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on state revenues. 

2. Expenditures: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on state expenditures. 

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS: 

1. Revenues: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on local government revenues. 

2. Expenditures: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on local government expenditures. 

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR: 

The bill does not appear to have any direct economic impact on the private sector. 

D. FISCAL COMMENTS: 

None. 

Ill. COMMENTS 

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES: 

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision: 

The bill does not appear to require counties or municipalities to take an action requiring the 
expenditure of funds, reduce the authority that counties or municipalities have to raise revenue in the 
aggregate, nor reduce the percentage of state tax shared with counties or municipalities. 

2. Other: 

The statute of limitations in effect at the time the crime is committed controls. 20 However, the 
legislature can amend statutes of limitation to apply retroactively without running afoul of the 
constitutional ex post facto prohibition if it does so before prosecution is barred by the old statute and 
clearly indicates that the new statute is to apply retroactively to cases pending when it becomes 
effective. 21 

20 State v. Wadsworth, 293 So.2d 345, 34 7 (Fla. 197 4 ). 
21 E.g.,Scharfschwerdt v. Kanarek, 553 So.2d 218, 220 (Fla. 4th DCA 1989) (recognizing extended statute of limitations 
regarding lewd and lascivious assault upon a child and sexual battery); State v. Calderon, 951 So 2d 1031, 1035 (fla. 3d 
STORAGE NAME: h0133 CJS DOCX PAGE: 4 
DATE 2/6/2015 



The bill appears to express an intent that it apply retroactively to cases pending on the effective ~ _ ... 

A prosecution pursuant to this bill may raise due process concerns if there is a long delay between 
the commission of the crime and the prosecution of the case. In United States v. Lovasco,22 the 
United States Supreme Court explained that criminal statutes of limitations provide the "primary 
guarantee" against bringing "stale" criminal charges and said that the Due Process Clause has a 
"limited role" in protecting against oppressive delay. The court said that it could "not determine in the 
abstract the circumstances in which preaccusation delay would require dismissing prosecutions."23 In 
considering whether a delay violates due process, other states have considered factors such as the 
length of the delay, the prejudice to the accused, and the reason for the delay. See State v. Gray, 
917 S.W. 668 (Tenn. 1996)(holding a 42 year delay between commission of a sex crime and 
prosecution violated the due process clause). 

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY: 

The bill does not appear to create a need for rule making or rulemaking authority. 

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS: 

None. 

IV. AMENDMENTS/ COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES 

N/A 

DCA 2007); Reina v State, 352 So 2d 853 (Fla. 1977) receded from on other grounds, Perez v. State, 545 So.2d 1357 
~Fla. 1989). 

2 431 U.S. 783, 789 (1977). 
23 

/d. at 796. 
STORAGE NAME: h0133 CJS DOCX 
DATE: 2/6/2015 

PAGE: 5 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 133 2015 

1 A bill to be entitled 

2 An act relating to sexual offenses; providing a short 

3 title; amending s. 95.11, F.S.; providing an extended 

4 statute of limitations on civil actions relating to 

5 sexual battery on victims 16 years of age or older; 

6 amending s. 775.15, F.S.; revising time limitations 

7 for the criminal prosecution of specified sexual 

8 battery offenses if the victim is 18 years of age or 

9 older; providing applicability; providing an effective 

10 date. 

11 

12 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida: 

13 

14 Section 1. This act may be cited as the "43 Days 

15 Initiative Act." 

16 Section 2. Subsection (9) of section 95.11, Florida 

17 Statutes, is amended to read: 

18 95.11 Limitations other than for the recovery of real 

19 property.-Actions other than for recovery of real property shall 

20 be commenced as follows: 

21 (9) SEXUAL BATTERY OFFENSES OH VICTIHS UNDER ACE 16.-

22 ~ An action related to an act constituting a violation 

23 of s. 794.011 involving a victim who was under the age of 16 at 

24 the time of the act may be commenced at any time. This paragraph 

25 subsection applies to any such action other than one which would 

26 have been time barred on or before July 1, 2010. 

Page 1 of 2 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0133-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 133 2015 

27 (b) An action related to an act constituting a violation 

28 of s. 794.011 involving a victim who was 16 years of age or 

29 older at the time of the act may be commenced within 10 years 

30 after the violation is committed. This paragraph applies to any 

31 such action other than one which would have been time barred on 

32 or before July 1, 2015. 

33 Section 3. Subsection (14) of section 775.15, Florida 

34 Statutes, is amended to read: 

35 775.15 Time limitations; general time limitations; 

36 exceptions.-

37 (14)~ A prosecution for a first or second degree felony 

38 violation of s. 794.011, if the victim is 18 years of age or 

39 older at the time of the offense and the offense is reported to 

40 a law enforcement agency within 72 hours after commission of the 

41 offense, may be commenced at any time. If the offense is not 

42 reported '.Vithin 72 hours after the cofflfflission of the offense, 

4 3 the prosecution must be cofflffienced Hi thin the time periods 

44 prescribed in subsection (2). 

45 (b) Except as provided in paragraph (a), a prosecution for 

46 a first or second degree felony violation of s. 794.011, if the 

47 victim is 18 years of age or older at the time of the offense, 

48 must be commenced within 10 years after the violation is 

49 committed. This paragraph applies to any such offense except an 

50 offense the prosecution of which would have been barred by 

51 subsection (2) on or before July 1, 2015. 

52 Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 2015. 

Page 2 of 2 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0133-00 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 133 (2015) 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECTION 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WITHDRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Civil Justice Subcommittee 

2 Representative Plasencia offered the following: 

3 

4 

5 

6 

Amendment (with title amendment) 

Remove everything after the enacting clause and insert: 

Section 1. This act may be cited as the "43 Days 

7 Initiative Act." 

8 Section 2. Subsection (14) of section 775.15, Florida 

9 Statutes, is amended to read: 

10 775.15 Time limitations; general time limitations; 

11 exceptions.-

12 (13) 

13 (b) If the offense is a first degree felony violation of 

14 s. 794.011 and the victim was under 18 years of age at the time 

15 the offense was committed, a prosecution of the offense may be 

16 commenced at any time. This paragraph applies to any such 

578825 - h0133 - Strike.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 5:52:00 PM 

Page 1 of 3 



llllllllllllllllllllllllllll 

Amendment No. 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 133 (2015) 

17 offense except an offense the prosecution of which would have 

18 been barred by subsection (2) on or before October 1, 2003. 

19 (14)~ A prosecution for a first or second degree felony 

20 violation of s. 794.011, if the victim is lf ±&years of age or 

21 older at the time of the offense and the offense is reported to 

22 a law enforcement agency within 72 hours after commission of the 

23 offense, may be commenced at any time. If the offense is not 

24 reported ',dthin 72 hours after the commission of the offense, 

25 the prosecution must be commenced '.vithin the time periods 

2 6 prescribed in subsection ( 2) • 

27 (b) Except as provided in paragraph (a) or paragraph 

28 (13) (b), a prosecution for a first or second degree felony 

29 violation of s. 794.011, if the victim is 16 years of age or 

30 older at the time of the offense, must be commenced within 10 

31 years after the violation is committed. This paragraph applies 

32 to any such offense except an offense the prosecution of which 

33 would have been barred by subsection (2) on or before July 1, 

34 2015. 

35 

36 

37 

38 

39 

40 

41 

42 

Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 2015. 

T I T L E A M E N D M E N T 

Remove everything before the enacting clause and insert: 

A bill to be entitled 

An act relating to sexual offenses; providing a short 

title; amending s. 775.15, F.S.; revising time 

578825 - h0133 - Strike.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 5:52:00 PM 

Page 2 of 3 



43 

44 

45 

46 

1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 133 (2015) 

limitations for the criminal prosecution of specified 

sexual battery offenses if the victim is 16 years of 

age or older; providing applicability; providing an 

effective date. 

578825 - h0133 - Strike.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 5:52:00 PM 

Page 3 of 3 



:I: 
OJ 
N 
co 
w 



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS 

BILL#: HB 283 Transfers to Minors 
SPONSOR(S): Berman 
TIED BILLS: None IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 630 

REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST 

1) Civil Justice Subcommittee 

2) Insurance & Banking Subcommittee 

3) Judiciary Comm1ttee 

SUMMARY ANALYSIS 

STAFF DIRECTOR or 

BUD~ET/POLICY CHIEF 

The Uniform Gifts to Minors Act creates a simple legal custodianship, in an adult or appropriate institution, of 
property that would otherwise transfer directly to the minor. The purpose is to avoid the expense and 
complexity required by a formal trust or a legal guardianship. The Act requires full distribution of the total gifts 
to a minor upon reaching the age of 21. 

This bill amends the Uniform Gifts to Minors Act to provide a mechanism to extend control over the gift to age 
25 provided that the minor is given a brief opportunity at age 21 to opt out of such control. 

This bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments. 

The effective date of the bill is July 1, 2015. 

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives. 
STORAGE NAME. h0283 CJS.DOCX 
DATE. 2/9/2015 



FULL ANALYSIS 

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS 

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES: 

Background - Uniform Gifts to Minors Act 

Transfers of property to minors create significant problems. To begin with, most transferors do not wish 
to place valuable property under the control of inexperienced children. The probability of 
mismanagement, or no management whatsoever, remains a significant specter to those who would 
make such transfers. Somehow, control of the property must be retained in competent hands. Further, 
third parties often will not deal with minors, even if they are technically competent to manage their own 
affairs. Minors can disaffirm contracts, and third parties do business with them only with some risk. Yet, 
certain transfers to minors are very advantageous, particularly for the purposes of estate planning. 1 

A trust, in which control and management reside with a trustee, for the designated beneficiaries, offers 
one solution. But trusts are complex and expensive to create and manage. For smaller property 
transfers, they are not a satisfactory alternative. Formal guardianships or conservatorships are, also, 
not generally useful for the purpose. The Uniform Gifts to Minors Act creates a custodianship, in an 
adult or appropriate institution, of property that would otherwise transfer directly to the minor. The 
custodianship remains until the minor becomes 21 (or, in some instances, age 18). The custodial 
relationship is created by executing a rather simple document, the form of which is provided in the Act 
itself. The minor does not obtain control of the property. The custodian has certain statutory authority to 
deal with it on the minor's behalf, third parties have no occasion to be uncertain about dealing with the 
custodian, and the transfer is a complete and irrevocable transfer to the minor satisfying the 
requirements of tax law.2 

Florida codified the Uniform Gifts to Minors Act at ch. 710, F.S. 

Background - Federal Estate Tax 

The federal estate tax is a tax on the value of one's estate after application of certain exclusions. The 
gift tax is a portion of the estate tax that imposes an estate-tax equivalent tax on certain lifetime gifts. 
Without the gift tax, the estate tax would in many cases be easily avoided though use of gifts to heirs. 

A significant exclusion to the gift tax is the minimum dollar threshold. A gift that falls under the value of 
the exclusion is not subject to the gift tax. The current gift tax exemption amount is $14,000 per 
annum. 3 Thus, a common, simple and legal form of estate tax avoidance is the use of lifetime gifts to 
heirs where those gifts fall below the exemption amount. 

The gift tax exclusion is only available if the gift is of a present interest. The federal tax code provides 
that no part of a gift to a minor (defined as an individual under age 21) is a gift of a future interest if 
certain conditions are met.4 Tax regulations interpreting the section provide that a gift will still be a 
present interest if the "donee, upon reaching age 21, has the right to extend the term of the trust". 5 A 
197 4 Revenue Ruling supports the creation of an "opt-out" window at age 21 which, if not exercised by 
the donee, allows for an automatic extension of the restrictions on the gift to age 25. 6 

1 Transfers to Minors Act Summary, at http://www.uniformlaws org/ActSummary.aspx?title=Transfers to Minors Act (last 
accessed February 2, 2015. 
2 /d. 
3 IRS Publication 559 (2013), p. 25. 
4 26 U.S.C. § 2503(c) 
5 Regulation 25.2503-4(b)(2) 
6 Rev.Rul. 74-43, found that: "a gift to a minor in trust, with the provision that the beneficiary has, upon reaching age 21, 
either ( 1) a cont1nuing right to compel immediate distribution of the trust corpus by givmg written notice to the trustee, or to 
STORAGE NAME: h0283.CJS DOCX PAGE: 2 
DATE. 2/9/2015 



Effect of Bill 

The Uniform Gifts to Minors Act requires full distribution of the most gifts to a minor upon reaching the 
age of 21.7 This bill amends the Uniform Gifts to Minors Act to provide a mechanism to extend control 
over such gifts to age 25 provided that the minor is given a brief opportunity at age 21 to opt out of such 
control. 

This bill amends s. 710.123, F.S., to create the terms by which control over a gift may be extended to 
age 25. The terms of the custodianship must provide that it ends when the minor reaches age 25. The 
extension beyond the 21st birthday may only be accomplished if the custodian of the gift delivers a 
written notice within a 60 day period (between 30 days before the birthday and 30 days after) around 
the minor's 21st birthday. The notice must inform the minor that the minor may elect to terminate the 
custodianship and thereby receive full distribution of the gift. The minor must request termination of the 
custodianship no later than 30 days after receipt of the notice or 30 days after the 21st birthday, 
whichever is later. If the minor does not act, the custodianship will continue until age 25. 

The bill also amends s. 710.105, F.S., to provide that a transfer by irrevocable gift from a revocable 
trust is treated as a transfer made directly by the grantor of the trust. The effect of this language is to 
provide that a revocable trust will be able to make a gift to a minor that can be restricted up to age 25 
under s. 71 0.123(1 ), F.S. Without the language, it is arguable that such a gift would be considered one 
by a fiduciary (governed by s. 710.107, F.S.) that would have to be distributed at age 18 pursuant to 
s. 71 0.123(2), F.S. 

The bill also provides that a financial institution acting as custodian under the Uniform Gifts to Minors 
Act is not liable should the institution distribute the gift at age 21. 

B. SECTION DIRECTORY: 

Section 1 amends s. 710.102, F .S., regarding definitions applicable to the Florida Uniform Transfers to 
Minors Act. 

Section 2 amends s. 710.105, F.S., regarding transfer by gift or exercise of power of appointment. 

Section 3 amends s. 710.123, F.S., regarding termination of custodianship. 

Section 4 provides an effective date of July 1, 2015. 

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT 

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT: 

1. Revenues: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on state revenues. 

2. Expenditures: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on state expenditures. 

permit the trust to continue by its own terms, or (2) a right during a limited period to compel immediate distribution of the 
trust corpus by given written notice to the trustee which if not exercised will permit the trust to continue by its own terms, 
will not be considered to be the gift of a future interest as the gift satisfies the requirements of section 2503(c) of the 
Code" 
7 A gift from certain fiduciaries, s 710.107, F.S., or from an obligor of the minor, s. 710.108, F .S., must be distributed at 
age 18 pursuant to s. 71 0.123(2), F. S. This bill does not affect such gifts or the duty to distribute them upon attaining age 
18. 
STORAGE NAME: h0283 CJS.DOCX 
DATE: 2/9/2015 

PAGE: 3 



n/a 

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS: 

1. Revenues: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on local government revenues. 

2. Expenditures: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on local government expenditures. 

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR: 

None. 

D. FISCAL COMMENTS: 

The bill appears to have a minimal indeterminate positive fiscal impact on the private sector to the 
extent that it can benefit individuals in their exercise of lawful federal tax avoidance. 

Ill. COMMENTS 

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES: 

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision: 

The bill does not appear to require counties or municipalities to take an action requiring the 
expenditure of funds, reduce the authority that counties or municipalities have to raise revenue in the 
aggregate, nor reduce the percentage of state tax shared with counties or municipalities. 

2. Other: 

None. 

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY: 

The bill does not appear to create a need for rulemaking or rulemaking authority. 

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS: 

None. 

IV. AMENDMENTS/ COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES 

STORAGE NAME· h0283 CJS.DOCX 
DATE· 2/9/2015 

PAGE: 4 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 283 2015 

1 A bill to be entitled 

2 An act relating to transfers to minors; amending s. 

3 710.102, F.S; defining the term "general power of 

4 appointment"; amending s. 710.105, F.S.; specifying 

5 that certain transfers from a trust are considered as 

6 having been made directly by the grantor of the trust; 

7 amending s. 710.123, F.S.; authorizing custodianships 

8 established by irrevocable gift and by irrevocable 

9 exercise of power of appointment to terminate when a 

10 minor attains the age of 25, subject to the minor's 

11 right in such custodianships to compel distribution of 

12 the property upon attaining the age of 21; limiting 

13 liability of financial institutions for certain 

14 distributions of custodial property; providing an 

15 effective date. 

16 

17 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida: 

18 

19 Section 1. Subsections (9) through (18) of section 

20 710.102, Florida Statutes, are renumbered as subsections (10) 

21 through (19), respectively, and a new subsection (9) is added to 

22 that section to read: 

23 710.102 Definitions.-As used in this act, the term: 

24 (9) "General power of appointment" means a power of 

25 appointment as defined ins. 732.2025(3). 

26 Section 2. Section 710.105, Florida Statutes, is amended 

Page 1 of 4 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0283-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 283 

27 to read: 

28 710.105 Transfer by gift or exercise of power of 

29 appointment.-A person may make a transfer by irrevocable gift 

30 to, or the irrevocable exercise of a power of appointment in 

2015 

31 favor of, a custodian for the benefit of a minor pursuant to s. 

32 710.111. Notwithstanding s. 710.106, a transfer by irrevocable 

33 gift from a trust over which the grantor has at the time of 

34 transfer a right of revocation, as defined in s. 7 33. 7 07 ( 3) (e) , 

35 shall be treated for all purposes under this act as a transfer 

36 made directly by the grantor of the trust. 

37 Section 3. Section 710.123, Florida Statutes, is amended 

38 to read: 

39 710.123 Termination of custodianship.-

40 Jll The custodian shall transfer in an appropriate manner 

41 the custodial property to the minor or to the minor's estate 

42 upon the earlier of: 

43 ~+±+ The minor's attainment of 21 years of age with 

44 respect to custodial property transferred under s. 710.105 or s. 

45 710.106. However, a transferor can, with respect to such 

46 custodial property, create the custodianship so that it 

47 terminates when the minor attains 25 years of age; 

48 JQl~ The minor's attainment of~ 18 years of age with 

49 respect to custodial property transferred under s. 710.107 or s. 

50 710.108; or 

51 ~+3+ The minor's death. 

52 (2) If the transferor of a custodianship under paragraph 

Page 2 of 4 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0283-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 283 2015 

53 ( 1) (a) creates the custodianship to terminate when the minor 

54 attains 25 years of age, in the case of a custodianship created 

55 by irrevocable gift or by irrevocable inter vivos exercise of a 

56 general power of appointment, the minor nevertheless has the 

57 absolute right to compel immediate distribution of the entire 

58 custodial property when the minor attains 21 years of age. 

59 (3) As to a custodianship described in subsection (2), a 

60 transferor may provide, by delivery of a written instrument to 

61 the custodian upon the creation of such custodianship, that the 

62 minor's right to compel immediate distribution of the entire 

63 custodial property will terminate upon the expiration of a fixed 

64 period that begins with the custodian's delivery of a written 

65 notice to the minor of the existence of such right. To be 

66 effective to terminate the minor's right to compel an immediate 

67 distribution of the entire custodial property when the minor 

68 attains 21 years of age, the custodian's written notice must be 

69 delivered at least 30 days before, and not later than 30 days 

70 after, the date upon which the minor attains 21 years of age, 

71 and the fixed period specified in the notice for the termination 

72 of such right cannot expire before the later of 30 days after 

73 the minor attains 21 years of age or 30 days after the custodian 

74 delivers such notice. 

75 ( 4) Notwithstanding s. 710.102(11), if the transferor 

76 creates the custodianship to terminate when the minor attains 25 

77 years of age, solely for purposes of the application of the 

78 termination provisions of this section, the term "minor" means 

Page 3 of 4 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0283-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 283 2015 

79 an individual who has not attained 25 years of age. 

80 (5) A financial institution has no liability to a 

81 custodian or minor for distribution of custodial property to, or 

82 for the benefit of, the minor in a custodianship created by 

83 irrevocable gift or by irrevocable exercise of a general power 

84 of appointment when the minor attains 21 years of age. 

85 Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 2015. 

Page 4 of 4 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0283-00 





HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS 

BILL #: HB 307 Mobile Homes 
SPONSOR(S): Latvala 
TIED BILLS: None IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 662 

REFERENCE 

1) Civil Justice Subcommittee 

2) Government Operations Appropriations 
Subcommittee 

3) Regulatory Affairs Committee 

ACTION 

SUMMARY ANALYSIS 

ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR or 

The Florida Mobile Home Act (act) regulates residential tenancies in which a mobile home is placed on a 
rented or leased lot in a mobile home park with 10 or more lots. The Division of Florida Condominiums, 
Timeshares, and Mobile Homes of the Department of Business and Professional Regulation (division) enforces 
the act. The bill makes the following changes to the act: 

• The division is required to provide training and educational programs for mobile home owners' 
associations; 

• Mobile home owners must comply with all building permit and construction requirements. A mobile 
home owner is responsible for fines imposed for violating any local codes; 

• A mobile home owner's right to notice of a rental increase or change in services may not be waived; 
• A homeowners' committee must make a written request for a meeting with the park owner to discuss a 

proposed rental increase or change in services or rules; 
• Automatically renewable leases are assumable by the homeowner's spouse; however, this right of 

assumption may only be exercised once during the term of the lease; 
• A member of the board of directors of the Florida Mobile Home Relocation Corporation must be 

removed immediately upon written request for removal from the association that originally nominated 
that member; 

• A homeowners' association's bylaws must include specific provisions related to meetings, voting 
requirements, proxies, amending the articles of incorporation and bylaws, duties of officers and 
directors, vacancies on the board, and recall of directors; 

• Board members must either certify that they have read the association's organizing documents, rules, 
and regulations and that they will faithfully discharge their fiduciary responsibility, or complete the 
division's educational program within one year of taking office; and 

• A homeowners' association is required to retain and make available certain official records. 

The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments. 

The bill has an effective date of July 1, 2015. 

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives. 
STORAGE NAME: h0307.CJS.DOCX 
DATE: 2/6/2015 



FULL ANALYSIS 

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS 

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES: 

Chapter 723, F.S., the Florida Mobile Home Act, regulates residential tenancies in which a mobile 
home is placed on a rented or leased lot in a mobile home park with 10 or more lots. 1 The Division of 
Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes of the Department of Business and 
Professional Regulation (division), has the power to promulgate rules under the Mobile Home Act, the 
Condominium Act, and the Cooperative Act, and to investigate, enforce, and ensure compliance with 
those rules and the provisions of those acts.2 

Although mobile home ownership is similar in some ways to condominium or cooperative ownership, 
mobile home ownership differs significantly in that the mobile homeowner does not own the underlying 
lot on which the home is located. Instead, the homeowner rents or leases the lot. 

The bill incorporates some provisions of Condominium Act and the Cooperative Act into the Florida 
Mobile Home Act as well as making changes to the Mobile Home Act to address the unique tenancy 
aspects of mobile home ownership. 

Training and Educational Programs for Mobile Home Owners' Association Board Members and 
Mobile Home Owners 

The division is required under the Condomin_ium Act and Cooperative Act to provide training and 
educational programs for association board members and owners. 3 The division may also approve 
education and training programs and maintain a list of approved programs and providers. No similar 
provisions exist in the Mobile Home Act. 

The bill amends s. 723.006, F.S., to require the division to provide the same training and educational 
provider lists for mobile home owners' associations and owners. The cost of the training and 
educational programs must be borne by the providers of the programs, and the division must establish 
a fee structure for the training programs sufficient to recover any costs it incurs. 

The bill also provides that the required information provided to board member and home owners must 
include the provider of the training programs, and the price, location, dates and curriculum for the 
programs. The curriculum must provide information about statutory and regulatory matters relating to 
the board of directors of the homeowners' association and their responsibilities. The educational 
programs may not contain editorial comments. 

Mobile Home Owner's General Obligations 

Currently, s. 723.023, F.S., requires a mobile home owner to comply with all building, housing, and 
health codes; to keep the mobile home lot clean and sanitary; to comply with park rules and regulations 
and require others on the premises to comply such regulations; and to conduct themselves in a manner 
that does not unreasonably disturb other residents of the park. 

The bill amends. s. 723.023, F.S., to provide additional requirements for mobile home owners. They 
must comply with all building permit and construction requirements and keep the mobile home lot neat 

1 Section 723.002(1 ), F.S. The Act does not apply "to any other tenancy, including a tenancy in which both a mobile home 
and a mobile home lot are rented or leased by the mobile home resident or a tenancy in which a rental space is offered for 
occupancy by recreational-vehicle-type un1ts which are primarily designed as temporary living quarters for recreational 
camping or travel use and which either have their own motor power or are mounted on or drawn by another vehicle." 
2 Sections 723.005, ·723.006, 718.501(1), and 719.501(1), F.S. 
3 Sections 718.501(1)0), and 719.501(1)(k), F.S. 
STORAGE NAME: h0307.CJS DOCX PAGE: 2 
DATE: 2/6/2015 



and maintained in compliance with all local codes. The owner is also responsible for all fines imposec' 
for noncompliance with any local codes. 

Lot Rental Increases and Homeowners' Committee Negotiations 

Section 723.037, F.S., requires mobile home park owners to give written notice to mobile home owners 
and the board of directors of the homeowners' association at least 90 days prior to any increase in lot 
rental or reduction in services or utilities provided by the park owner or change in rules and regulations. 

A committee of up to five people, designated by a majority of the owners or by the board of directors, 
and the park owner must meet within 30 days of the notice of change to discuss the reasons for the 
changes. If the meeting does not resolve the issue, then additional meetings may be requested. If 
subsequent meetings are unsuccessful, either party may petition the division to initiate mediation. If the 
mediation does not successfully resolve the dispute, then the parties may file an action in circuit court.4 

The bill amends s. 723.037, F.S., to provide that a mobile home owner's right to the 90-day notice may 
not be waived or precluded by agreement with the park owner. Additionally, the bill provides that the 
homeowners' committee and the park owner must meet no later than 60 days before the effective date 
of the change rather than within 30 days after receipt of the notice of change as currently required. The 
homeowners' committee must also make a written request for a meeting with the park owner to discuss 
the matters in the 90-day notice and may include in the request a list of any other issue the committee 
intends to discuss at the meeting. 

The bill defines the term "parties" for the purposes of mediation pursuant to ss. 723.037 and 723.038, 
F.S., to mean a park owner and a homeowners' committee selected pursuant to s. 723.037, F.S. It also 
defines the term "homeowners' committee" ins. 723.003, F.S., in a manner that is consistent with how 
the term is currently used and applied ins. 723.037, F.S. 

Rights of Purchasers - Assumption of the Lease 

Section 723.059(5), F.S., provides that lifetime leases to mobile home lots entered into after July 1, 
1986, are not assumable unless allowed by the lot rental agreement or unless the transferee is the 
homeowner's spouse. Additionally, automatically renewable leases are not assumable unless provided 
for in the lease agreement. 

The bill amends s. 723.059(5), F.S., to provide that automatically renewable leases are assumable if 
the transferee is the homeowner's spouse; however, the right to assume the lease by a spouse may 
only be exercised once during the term of the lease. 

Florida Mobile Home Relocation Corporation - Removal of Members 

Section 723.0611, F.S., creates the Florida Mobile Home Relocation Corporation (corporation) to 
provide assistance to residents of mobile home parks who receive eviction notices due to a change in 
land use of the mobile home park to either relocate their mobile home or abandon it.5 The corporation 
is administered by a board of directors made up of six members, three of whom are appointed by the 
Secretary of Business and Professional Regulation (DBPR) from a list of nominees submitted by the 
largest nonprofit association representing mobile home owners in this state, and three of whom are 
appointed by the Secretary of DBPR from a list of nominees submitted by the largest nonprofit 
association representing the manufactured housing industry in this state.6 

4 Section 723.0381, F.S. 
5 Section 723.0612, F.S.; Florida Mobile Home Relocation Corporation Website, http://\IVWIN.fmhrc.org/ (last accessed Feb. 
5, 2015). 
6 Section 723.0611 (1 ), r.S. 
STORAGE NAME: h0307.CJS.DOCX PAGE: 3 
DATE: 2/6/2015 



The bill amends s. 723.0611, F.S., to provide that a member of the board of directors must be remo' 
by the Secretary of DBPR, with or without cause, immediately 2fter a written request for removal frc 
the association that originally nominated that board membe:(. The nominating entity must includ3 
nominees for replacement with the request for removal and the Secretary must immediately fill the 
vacancy created by the removal. The removal process may not occur more than once in a calendar 
year. 

Homeowners' Association Bylaws 

Section 723.078, F.S., provides that in order for a mobile home owners' association to exercise its right 
to purchase the mobile home park pursuant to s. 723.071, F.S., the association's bylaws must contain 
a number of statutory provisions. 

The bill amends s. 723.078, F.S., to remove the requirement that the bylaws contain the enumerated 
provisions for the association to exercise its right to purchase a mobile home park. The statute retains 
the requirement that the association's bylaws contain all the enumerated provisions, and if they do not, 
then they are deemed included. 

The bill defines "homeowners' association" for the purposes of ch. 723, F.S., to mean 

a corporation for profit or not for profit, which is formed and operates in compliance with 
ss. 723.075-723.079; or, in a subdivision the homeowners' association authorized in the 
subdivision documents in which all home owners must be members as a condition of 
ownership. 

Administration 

Section 723.078(2)(a), F.S., provides that a board of directors of a homeowners' association must have 
a president, secretary, and treasurer; however, it does not indicate how those positions are to be filled. 
This provision also provides that the board of directors may appoint and designate other officers. The 
Condominium Act and the Cooperative Act contain similarly worded provisions. 7 

The bill amends s. 723.078(2)(a), F.S., to provide that the board of directors must elect a president 
secretary, and treasurer, and that the board of directors may elect and designate other officers. 

Quorum; Voting Requirements; and Proxies 

Section 723.078(2)(b)1., F.S., currently provides that a majority of the association's members 
constitutes a quorum. 

The bill amends s. 723.078(2)(b)1., F.S., to provide that unless otherwise provided in the bylaws, 30 
percent of the total membership is required to constitute a quorum. 

Section 723.078(2)(b)1., F.S., also provides that the association's bylaws must provide for the use of a 
proxy. Any proxy given must be effective only for the specific meeting for which originally given. A proxy 
may be valid for up to 120 days after the date of the first meeting for which it was given. Every proxy 
must also be revocable at any time. 

The bill amends s. 723.078(2)(b)1., F.S., to reduce the number of days a proxy may be valid from 120 
days to 90 days. The bill also incorporates a number of proxy provisions found in the Condominium Act 
and the Cooperative Act.8 Specifically, that: 

7 Sections 718.112(2)(a)1. and 719.106(1)(a)1., F.S. 
8 /d. 
STORAGE NAME: h0307.CJS.DOCX 
DATE: 2/6/2015 

PAGE: 4 



• A member of the association may only vote by limited proxies that conform to a limited proxy 
form adopted by the division; 

• Limited proxies and general proxies may be used to eslc.oiish a quorum; and 
• Limited proxies may be used for votes taken to amend the articles of incorporation or bylaws, 

and any other matters thatch. 723, F.S., requires or permits a vote of members, except that :lJ 

proxy may be used in the election of board members; 

The bill also provides that a member of the board of directors or a committee may submit in writing his 
or her agreement or disagreement with any action taken at a meeting that the member did not attend. 

Board of Directors' and Committee Meetings 

Section 723.078(c), F.S., currently requires that meetings of the board of directors must be open to 
members, and notice of meetings must be posted in a conspicuous place on park property at least 48 
hours in advance, except in an emergency. Notice of any meeting in which assessments are to be 
considered must contain a statement that assessments will be considered and the nature of such 
assessments. 

The bill amends s. 723.078(c), F.S., to provide that members of the board of directors may use e-mail 
as a means of communication but may not cast a vote via e-mail. The bill also incorporates a number of 
board of directors' and committee meeting provisions found in the Condominium Act and the 
Cooperative Act. 9 

Specifically, the bill provides that the requirement that board and committee meetings be open to the 
members does not apply to meetings held for the purpose of discussing personnel matters or meetings 
with the association's attorney where the contents of the discussion would be governed by the attorney
client privilege. 

The bill also provides that a board or committee member's participation in a meeting via telephone, 
videoconference, or similar communication counts toward a quorum, and he or she may vote as if 
physically present. 

Additionally, the bill provides that the right to attend meetings of the board and its committees includes 
the right to speak at such meetings; however, the association may adopt reasonable written rules 
governing members' statements. Any item not included on the notice may be taken up on an 
emergency basis by at least a majority plus one of the members of the board. Such emergency action 
must be noticed and ratified at the next regular meeting of the board. Any member may tape record or 
videotape meetings, and the division must adopt rules governing the tape recording and videotaping of 
meetings. 

Vacancies on the Board of Directors 

Currently, ch. 723, F.S., does not provide a procedure to fill vacancies on the association's board of 
directors. 

The bill amends s. 723.078(2)(c), F.S., to provide a procedure to fill vacancies on the association's 
board of directors. It provides that except in cases of a recall vote, 10 a vacancy occurring on the board 
of directors may be filled by: 

• The affirmative vote of the majority of the remaining directors, even though the remaining 
directors constitute less than a quorum; 

• By the sole remaining director; 

9 Sections 718.112(2)(b) and (c) and 719.1 06(1 )(c), F .S. 
10 See Recall of Board Members discussio:1 beiow. 
STORAGE NAME: h0307.CJS.DOCX 
DATE: 2/6/2015 

PAG=: 5 



e If no director remains, by the members; or, 
o By the c::cuit court of th·3 county in which ti19 registered c-:~::.~:; -~.f ti-:·3 c·:;: .:rc:',:~:l ~~ k: :.::.~sd. 

The term of a director elected or appointed to fill a vacancy expires at the next annual meeting at which 
directors are elected. A directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of directors may 
be filled by the board of directors, but only for the term of office continuing until the next election of 
directors by the members. A vacancy that will occur at a specific later date, by reason of a resignation 
effective at a later date, may be filled before the vacancy occurs. However, the new director may not 
take office until the vacancy occurs. 

Officer and Director Duties 

Section 723.078(2)(i), F.S., currently provides that the officers and directors of a mobile homeowners' 
association only have a fiduciary relationship to the members. 

The bill amends s. 723.078(2), F.S., to expand the duties of officers and directors. The bill requires a 
director and committee member to discharge his or her duties in good faith, with the care an ordinarily 
prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar circumstances, and in a manner he or 
she reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the corporation .11 

In discharging his or her duties, a director may rely on information, opinions, reports, statements, or if 
prepared by officers, employees, and any other professional, such as legal counsel or accountants, 
who the director reasonably believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented. However, 
a director is not acting in good faith if he or she has knowledge concerning the matter in question that 
makes such reliance unwarranted. 

If a director has performed the duties of his or her office in compliance with this provision, he or she is 
not liable for any action taken as a director, or any failure to take any action. 

Member Meetings 

Section 723.078(2)(d), F.S., requires annual member meetings during which members of the board of 
the directors are elected. The association's bylaws may not restrict any member desiring to be a 
candidate for board membership from being nominated. Written notice of all meetings must be provided 
at least 14 days in advance of the meeting. Unless waived, the notice of the annual meeting must be 
sent by mail to each member. 

The bill amends s. 723.078(2)(d), F.S., to provide that all nominations must be made at a meeting of 
the members held at least 30 days before the annual meeting. It also allows for notice of the annual 
meeting to be hand delivered or electronically transmitted, which is similarly allowed in the in the 
Condominium Act and the Cooperative Act. 1 The bill defines "electronic transmission" to mean: 

a form of communication, not directly involving the physical transmission or transfer of 
paper, that creates a record that may be retained, retrieved, and reviewed by a recipient 
and that may be directly reproduced in a comprehensible and legible paper form by the 
recipient through an automated process, such as a printer or copy machine. Examples of 
electronic transmission include, but are not limited to, telegrams, facsimile transmission 
of images, and text that is sent via e-mail between computers.13 

The term does not include oral communication by telephone. 

11 The Condominium Act contains nearly identical language. Section 718.111 (1 )(d), F .S. 
12 Sections 718.112(2)(c) and 719.1 06(1 )(c), F .S. 
13 This definition is nearly identical to the definition provided in s. 617.01401 (8), F .S ., in the Florida Not for Profit 
Corporation Act. 
STORAGE NAME. h0307.CJSDOCX PAGE: 6 
DATE: 2/6/2015 



Minutes of Meetings 

Section 723.078(2)(e), F.S., requires the minutes of all meetings of members and of the board of 
directors to be maintained, available for inspection, and retained for at least 7 years. 

The bill requires that the minutes of all meetings of members of the association, the board of directors, 
and a committee must be maintained in written form and approved by the members, board, or 
committee, as applicable. It also requires that a vote or abstention from voting on each matter voted 
upon for each director present at a board meeting must be recorded in the minutes. A similar vote 
recording requirement is provided in the Condominium Act and the Cooperative Act. 14 

Amendment of Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 

Section 723.078(2)(h), F.S., currently requires an association's bylaws to provide a method to amend 
the bylaws. If the bylaws do not provide a method of amendment, they may be amended by the board 
of directors and approved by a majority of the membership. 

The bill requires that the articles of incorporation as well as the bylaws must provide a method for their 
amendment. The bill also provides that if the bylaws do not provide a method of amendment, they may 
be amended by the board of directors and approved by a majority of members at a meeting at which a 
quorum is present rather than a majority of the membership as is currently required. 

Additionally, notwithstanding any other provision of s. 723.078, F.S., if an amendment to the articles of 
incorporation or the bylaws is required by any federal, state, or local governmental authority or agency, 
or any law, ordinance, or rule, the board of directors may, by a majority vote, amend the articles of 
incorporation or bylaws without a vote of the membership. 

Recall of Board Members 

Currently, s. 723.08(2), F.S., provides a limited procedure for the recall of members of a mobile 
homeowners' association board of directors. Any member of the board of directors may be recalled and 
removed from office by the vote or written agreement of a majority of all members. 

The bill amends s. 723.08(2), F.S., by incorporating the extensive recall provisions currently in the 
Condominium Act and the Cooperative Act. 15 Pursuant to these provisions, a recall may be approved 
by a majority vote of all members at a meeting or by a written agreement by a majority of all members. 
If a recall is approved by the members, the board must hold a board meeting to determine whether to 
certify the recall. If the board does not certify a recall, the members may file a petition for binding 
arbitration with the division. 

A board member who has been recalled must return all records and property of the association in his or 
her possession within 5 business days. A board member who has been recalled may file a petition for 
binding arbitration with the division 16 challenging the validity of the recall. The petition must be filed 
within 60 days after the recall. 

A vacancy on a board due to a recall may be filled by a vote of a majority of the remaining directors. If a 
vacancy occurs on a board due to a recall and a majority of the board members are removed, the 
vacancies will be filled in accordance with rules to be adopted by the division. 

14 Sections 718.111 ( 1 )(b) and 719.1 04(8)(b ), F.S. 
15 Sections 718.112(2)(j) and 719.1 06( 1 )(f), F.S. 
16 /d. 
STORAGE NAME: h0307.CJS.DOCX 
DATE: 2/6/2015 

PAGE: 7 



The bill also creates s. 723.1255, F. S., which requires the division to adopt rules of procedure that will 
govern binding recall c.i-bit,·ation pm::eeC:i:·.~--" 

Board Member Training Programs 

Currently, ch. 723, F.S., does not require board members to attend training related to the association's 
organizing documents, rules, and statutes. 

The bill creates s. 723.0781, F.S., to require board members to sign an affidavit certifying that they 
have read the association's organizing documents, rules, and regulations, that they will uphold such 
documents and policies to the best of their ability, and that they will faithfully discharge their fiduciary 
duty. In lieu of this, board members may complete the division's educational program within one year of 
taking office. Failure to comply with either requirement results in a suspension from the board until 
either requirement is met. 

Maintenance of Records 

Section 723.079(4), F.S., currently only requires mobile homeowners' associations to maintain and 
make available for inspection basic accounting records, such as records of all receipts and 
expenditures and records of assessments and payments by each member. 

The bill amends s. 723.079(4), F.S., to require an association to retain and make available an extensive 
list of official records similar to those currently required by in the Condominium Act and the Cooperative 
Act. 17 The records that must be retained include articles of incorporation, bylaws, meeting minutes, 
insurance policies, contracts, tax documents, and financial statements. The records must be retained 
for at least 7 years and available for inspection. Failure to provide a member the opportunity to inspect 
the records may result in damages starting at $10 per day. The association may develop reasonable 
rules related to the inspection of documents, including charging fees for copies, and may not allow 
inspection of documents that is protected by lawyer-client privilege or would reveal personal identifying 
information other than a person's name and address. 

Other Effects of the Bill 

The bill defines "mobile home lot" to mean "a lot described by a park owner pursuant to the 
requirements of s 723.012, F.S., or in a disclosure statement pursuant to s. 723.013, F.S., as a lot 
intended for the placement of a mobile home." 

The bill defines "offering circular" to have the same meaning as the term "prospectus." 

The bill updates cross-references to the changes in ch. 723, F.S., made by the bill. 

B. SECTION DIRECTORY: 

Section 1 amends s. 73.072, F.S., relating to compensation for permanent improvements by mobile 
home owners. 

Section 2 amends s. 723.003, F.S., relating to definitions. 

Section 3 amends s. 723.006, F.S., relating to powers and duties of the division. 

Section 4 amends s. 723.023, F.S., relating to mobile home owner's general obligations. 

Section 5 amends s. 723.031, F.S., relating to mobile home lot rental agreements. 

17 Sections 718.111(12) and 719.104(2), F.S. 
STORAGE NAME: h0307.CJS.DOCX 
DATE: 2/6/2015 

PAGE: 8 



Section 6 amends s. 723.037, F.S., relating to lot rental increases; reduction in services or utilities; 
change in rules and regulations; mediation. 

Section 7 amends s. 723.059, F.S., relating to rights of purchasers. 

Section 8 amends s. 723.0611, F.S., relating to the Florida Mobile Home Relocation Corporation. 

Section 9 amends s. 723.078, F.S., relating to bylaws of homeowners' associations. 

Section 10 creates s. 723.1255, F.S., relating to alternative resolution of recall disputes. 

Section 11 creates s. 723.0781, F.S., relating to board member training programs. 

Section 12 amends s. 723.079, F.S., relating to the powers and duties of homeowners' associations. 

Section 13 provides an effective date of July 1, 2015. 

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT 

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT: 

1. Revenues: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on state revenues. 

2. Expenditures: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on state expenditures. 

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS: 

1. Revenues: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on local government revenues. 

2. Expenditures: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on local government expenditures. 

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR: 

The bill does not appear to have any direct economic impact on the private sector. 

D. FISCAL COMMENTS: 

The bill does not appear to require counties or municipalities to take an action requiring the expenditure 
of funds, reduce the authority that counties or municipalities have to raise revenue in the aggregate, nor 
reduce the percentage of state tax shared with counties or municipalities. 

Ill. COMMENTS 

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES: 

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision: 

None. 

STORAGE NAME: h0307.CJS.DOCX 
DATE: 2/6/2015 

PAGE: 9 



2. Other: 

None. 

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY: 

The bill requires the division to adopt rules related to vacancies on a homeowners' association board of 
directors due to a recall, including rules of procedure for recall arbitration proceedings. 

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS: 

None. 

IV. AMENDMENTS/ COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES 

N/A 

STORAGE NAME: h0307.CJS.DOCX 
DATE: 2/6/2015 

PAGE: 10 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

1 A bill to be entitled 

2 An act relating to mobile homes; amending s. 73.072, 

3 F.S.; conforming a cross-reference; amending s. 

4 723.003, F.S.; providing definitions; amending s. 

5 723.006, F.S.; requiring the Division of Florida 

6 Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes to approve 

7 training and educational programs for board members of 

8 mobile home owners' associations; providing duties of 

9 the division; providing requirements for education 

10 curriculum information for board member and mobile 

11 home owner training; amending s. 723.023, F.S.; 

12 revising mobile home owner's general obligations; 

13 amending s. 723.031, F.S.; conforming a cross-

14 reference; amending s. 723.037, F.S.; providing and 

15 revising requirements for lot rental increases; 

16 amending s. 723.059, F.S.; revising provisions 

17 relating to rights of purchasers of lifetime leases; 

18 amending s. 723.0611, F.S.; providing for the removal 

19 of a member of the board of directors under certain 

20 conditions; amending s. 723.078, F.S.; revising 

21 provisions with respect to the bylaws of homeowners' 

22 associations; revising quorum and voting requirements; 

23 revising provisions relating to board of directors, 

24 committee, and member meetings; providing requirements 

25 for meeting minutes; revising requirements for the 

26 amendment of articles of incorporation and bylaws; 

Page 1 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 307 2015 

27 deleting a requirement that the officers and directors 

28 of the association have a fiduciary relationship to 

29 the members; revising requirements for the recall of 

30 board members; creating s. 723.1255, F.S.; providing 

31 requirements for the alternative resolution of recall 

32 disputes; creating s. 723.0781, F.S.; specifying 

33 certification or educational requirements for a newly 

34 elected or appointed cooperative board member; 

35 amending s. 723.079, F.S.; revising and providing 

36 requirements relating to the official records of the 

37 association; providing an effective date. 

38 

39 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida: 

40 

41 Section 1. Subsection (1) of section 73.072, Florida 

42 Statutes, is amended to read: 

43 73.072 Mobile home parks; compensation for permanent 

44 improvements by mobile home owners.-

45 (1) When all or a portion of a mobile home park as defined 

46 ins. 723.003 723.003(6) is appropriated under this chapter, the 

47 condemning authority shall separately determine the compensation 

48 for any permanent improvements made to each site. This 

49 compensation shall be awarded to the mobile home owner leasing 

50 the site if: 

51 (a) The effect of the taking includes a requirement that 

52 the mobile home owner remove or relocate his or her mobile home 

Page 2 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

53 

54 

55 

56 

57 

58 

59 

60 

61 

62 

63 

64 

65 

66 

67 

68 

69 

70 

71 

from the site; 

(b) The mobile home owner currently leasing the site has 

paid for the permanent improvements to the site; and 

(c) The value of the permanent improvements on the site 

exceeds $1,000 as of the date of taking. 

Section 2. 

to read: 

Section 723.003, Florida Statutes, is amended 

723.003 Definitions.-As used in this chapter, the term 

follo\:ing words and terms have the following meanings unless 

clearly indicated othen<ise: 

jJJ_(14) The term "Discrimination" or "discriminatory" 

means that a homeowner is being treated differently as to the 

rent charged, the services rendered, or an action for possession 

or other civil action being taken by the park owner, without a 

reasonable basis for the different treatment. 

(2) ( 1) The term "Division" means the Division of Florida 

Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes of the Department of 

Business and Professional Regulation. 

(3) "Electronic transmission" means a form of 

72 communication, not directly involving the physical transmission 

73 or transfer of paper, that creates a record that may be 

74 retained, retrieved, and reviewed by a recipient and that may be 

75 directly reproduced in a comprehensible and legible paper form 

76 by the recipient through an automated process, such as a printer 

77 or copy machine. Examples of electronic transmission include, 

78 but are not limited to, telegrams, facsimile transmission of 

Page 3 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

79 images, and text that is sent via e-mail between computers. 

80 Electronic transmission does not include oral communication by 

81 telephone. 

82 (4) "Homeowners' association" means a corporation for 

83 profit or not for profit, which is formed and operates in 

84 compliance with ss. 723.075-723.079; or, in a subdivision the 

85 homeowners' association authorized in the subdivision documents 

86 in which all home owners must be members as a condition of 

87 ownership. 

88 (5) "Homeowners' committee" means a committee, not to 

89 exceed five persons in number, designated by a majority of the 

90 affected homeowners in a mobile home park or a subdivision; or, 

91 if a homeowners' association has been formed, designated by the 

92 board of directors of the association. The homeowners' committee 

93 is designated for the purpose of meeting with the park owner or 

94 park developer to discuss lot rental increases, reduction in 

95 services or utilities, or changes in rules and regulations and 

96 any other matter authorized by the homeowners' association, or 

97 the majority of the affected home owners, and who are authorized 

98 to enter into a binding agreement with the park owner or 

99 subdivision developer, or a binding mediation agreement, on 

100 behalf of the association, its members, and all other mobile 

101 home owners in the mobile home park. 

102 The terFR "Lot rental amount" means all financial 

103 obligations, except user fees, which are required as a condition 

104 of the tenancy. 

Page 4 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

105 Ql_(3) The tenR "Mobile home" means a residential 

106 structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is 8 

107 body feet or more in width, over 35 body feet in length with the 

108 hitch, built on an integral chassis, designed to be used as a 

109 dwelling when connected to the required utilities, and not 

110 originally sold as a recreational vehicle, and includes the 

111 plumbing, heating, air-conditioning, and electrical systems 

112 contained therein. 

113 (8) "Mobile home lot" means a lot described by a park 

114 owner pursuant to the requirements of s 723.012, or in a 

115 disclosure statement pursuant to s. 723.013, as a lot intended 

116 for the placement of a mobile home. 

117 ill(4) The term "Mobile home lot rental agreement" or 

118 "rental agreement" means any mutual understanding or lease, 

119 whether oral or written, between a mobile home owner and a 

120 mobile home park owner in which the mobile home owner is 

121 entitled to place his or her mobile home on a mobile home lot 

122 for either direct or indirect remuneration of the mobile home 

123 park owner. 

124 Q_Ql(5) The term "Mobile home owner" or "home owner" means 

125 a person who owns a mobile home and rents or leases a lot within 

126 a mobile home park for residential use. 

127 J.1..ll_(6) The term "Mobile home park" or "park" means a use 

128 of land in which lots or spaces are offered for rent or lease 

129 for the placement of mobile homes and in which the primary use 

130 of the park is residential. 

Page 5 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

131 

132 

133 

134 

135 

136 

137 

138 

139 

140 

141 

142 

143 

144 

145 

146 

147 

l.ill(7) The term "Mobile home park owner" or "park owner" 

means an owner or operator of a mobile home park. 

Qll_(8) The term "Mobile home subdivision" means a 

subdivision of mobile homes where individual lots are owned by 

owners and where a portion of the subdivision or the amenities 

exclusively serving the subdivision are retained by the 

subdivision developer. 

(14) "Offering circular" has the same meaning as the term 

"prospectus" as it is used in this chapter. 

( 15) ( 9) The term "Operator of a mobile home park" means 

either a person who establishes a mobile home park on land that 

'dhich is leased from another person or a person who has been 

delegated the authority to act as the park owner in matters 

relating to the administration and management of the mobile home 

park, including, but not limited to, authority to make decisions 

relating to the mobile home park. 

ll_§J_ ( 10) The term "Pass-through charge" means the mobile 

148 home owner's proportionate share of the necessary and actual 

149 direct costs and impact or hookup fees for a governmentally 

150 mandated capital improvement, which may include the necessary 

151 and actual direct costs and impact or hookup fees incurred for 

152 capital improvements required for public or private regulated 

153 utili ties. 

154 J.12l(ll) The term "Proportionate share" as used in 

155 subsection ll_§J_ +±G+ means an amount calculated by dividing 

156 equally among the affected developed lots in the park the total 

Page 6 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

157 costs for the necessary and actual direct costs and impact or 

158 hookup fees incurred for governmentally mandated capital 

159 improvements serving the recreational and common areas and all 

160 affected developed lots in the park. 

161 J..1:...§l_ ( 15) The term "Resale agreement" means a contract in 

162 which a mobile home owner authorizes the mobile home park owner, 

163 or the park owner's designee, to act as exclusive agent for the 

164 sale of the homeowner's mobile home for a commission or fee. 

165 l.!2_l_(12) The term "Unreasonable" means arbitrary, 

166 capricious, or inconsistent with this chapter. 

167 J..l.Ql_(13) The term "User fees" means those amounts charged 

168 in addition to the lot rental amount for nonessential optional 

169 services provided by or through the park owner to the mobile 

170 home owner under a separate written agreement between the mobile 

171 home owner and the person furnishing the optional service or 

17 2 services. 

173 Section 3. Subsections (12), (13), and (14) are added to 

174 section 723.006, Florida Statutes, to read: 

175 723.006 Powers and duties of division.-In performing its 

176 duties, the division has the following powers and duties: 

177 ( 12) The division shall approve training and educational 

178 programs for board members of mobile home owners' associations 

179 formed and operated pursuant to s. 723.075(1) and mobile home 

180 owners. The training may, at the division's discretion, include 

181 web-based electronic media and live training and seminars in 

182 various locations throughout the state. 

Page 7 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 307 

183 ( 13) The division may review and approve educational 

184 curriculums and training programs for board members and mobile 

185 home owners to be offered by providers and shall maintain a 

186 current list of approved programs and providers, and make such 

187 lists available to board members in a reasonable and cost-

188 effective manner. The cost of such programs shall be borne by 

189 the providers of the programs. The division shall establish a 

190 fee structure for the approved training programs sufficient to 

191 recover any cost incurred by the division in operating this 

192 program. 

193 (14) Required education curriculum information for board 

194 member and mobile home owner training shall include: 

195 (a) The provider of the training programs, which shall 

196 include the following information regarding its training and 

197 educational programs: 

198 1. A price list, if any, for the programs and copies of 

1 9 9 a 11 rna t e ria 1 s . 

2015 

200 2. The physical location where programs will be available, 

201 if not web-based. 

3. Dates when programs will be offered. 

4. The curriculum of the program to be offered. 

202 

203 

204 (b) The programs shall provide information about statutory 

205 and regulatory matters relating to the board of directors of the 

206 homeowners' association and their responsibilities to the 

207 association and to the mobile home owners in the mobile home 

208 park. 

Page 8 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 307 2015 

209 (c) Programs and materials may not contain editorial 

210 comments. 

211 (d) The division has the right to approve and require 

212 changes to such education and training programs. 

213 Section 4. Section 723.023, Florida Statutes, is amended 

214 to read: 

215 723.023 Mobile home owner's general obligations.-A mobile 

216 home owner shall at all times: 

217 (1) Comply with all obligations imposed on mobile home 

218 owners by applicable provisions of building, housing, and health 

219 codes, including compliance with all building permits and 

220 construction requirements for construction on the mobile home 

221 and lot. The home owner is responsible for all fines imposed by 

222 the local government for noncompliance with any local codes. 

223 (2) Keep the mobile home lot which he or she occupies 

224 clean, neat, and sanitary, and maintained in compliance with all 

225 local codes. 

226 (3) Comply with properly promulgated park rules and 

227 regulations and require other persons on the premises with his 

228 or her consent to comply with such rules therev:ith and to 

229 conduct themselves, and other persons on the premises with his 

230 or her consent, in a manner that does not unreasonably disturb 

231 other residents of the park or constitute a breach of the peace. 

232 Section 5. Paragraph (b) of subsection (5) of section 

233 723.031, Florida Statutes, is amended to read: 

234 723.031 Mobile home lot rental agreements.-

Page 9 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

235 

236 

237 

238 

239 

240 

241 

242 

243 

244 

245 

246 

247 

248 

HB 307 2015 

(5) The rental agreement shall contain the lot rental 

amount and services included. An increase in lot rental amount 

upon expiration of the term of the lot rental agreement shall be 

in accordance with ss. 723.033 and 723.037 or s. 723.059(4), 

whichever is applicable, provided that, pursuant to s. 

723.059(4), the amount of the lot rental increase is disclosed 

and agreed to by the purchaser, in writing. An increase in lot 

rental amount shall not be arbitrary or discriminatory between 

similarly situated tenants in the park. No lot rental amount may 

be increased during the term of the lot rental agreement, 

except: 

(b) For pass-through charges as defined ins. 723.003 

723.003 (10). 

Section 6. Subsection (1) and paragraph (a) of subsection 

249 (4) of section 723.037, Florida Statutes, are amended, and 

250 subsection (7) is added to that section, to read: 

251 723.037 Lot rental increases; reduction in services or 

252 utilities; change in rules and regulations; mediation.-

253 (1) A park owner shall give written notice to each 

254 affected mobile home owner and the board of directors of the 

255 homeowners' association, if one has been formed, at least 90 

256 days before prior to any increase in lot rental amount or 

257 reduction in services or utilities provided by the park owner or 

258 change in rules and regulations. The notice shall identify all 

259 other affected homeowners, which may be by lot number, name, 

260 group, or phase. If the affected homeowners are not identified 

Page 10 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 307 

261 by name, the park owner shall make the names and addresses 

262 available upon request. The home owner's right to the 90-day 

263 notice may not be waived or precluded by a home owner, or the 

264 homeowners' committee, in an agreement with the park owner. 

265 Rules adopted as a result of restrictions imposed by 

2015 

266 governmental entities and required to protect the public health, 

267 safety, and welfare may be enforced prior to the expiration of 

268 the 90-day period but are not otherwise exempt from the 

269 requirements of this chapter. Pass-through charges must be 

270 separately listed as to the amount of the charge, the name of 

271 the governmental entity mandating the capital improvement, and 

272 the nature or type of the pass-through charge being levied. 

273 Notices of increase in the lot rental amount due to a pass-

274 through charge shall state the additional payment and starting 

275 and ending dates of each pass-through charge. The homeowners' 

276 association shall have no standing to challenge the increase in 

277 lot rental amount, reduction in services or utilities, or change 

278 of rules and regulations unless a majority of the affected 

279 homeowners agree, in writing, to such representation. 

280 (4) (a) A committee, not to exceed five in number, 

281 designated by a majority of the affected mobile home owners or 

282 by the board of directors of the homeowners' association, if 

283 applicable, and the park owner shall meet, at a mutually 

284 convenient time and place no later than 60 days before the 

285 effective date of the change within 30 days after receipt by the 

286 hom.eor,mers of the notice of change, to discuss the reasons for 

Page 11 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

287 the increase in lot rental amount, reduction in services or 

288 utilities, or change in rules and regulations. The negotiating 

289 committee shall make a written request for a meeting with the 

290 park owner or subdivision developer to discuss those matters 

291 addressed in the 90-day notice, and may include in the request a 

292 listing of any other issue, with supporting documentation, that 

293 the committee intends to raise and discuss at the meeting. 

294 

295 This subsection is not intended to be enforced by civil or 

296 administrative action. Rather, the meetings and discussions are 

297 intended to be in the nature of settlement discussions prior to 

298 the parties proceeding to mediation of any dispute. 

299 (7) The term "parties," for purposes of mediation under 

300 this section and s. 723.038, means a park owner and a 

301 homeowners' committee selected pursuant to this section. 

302 Section 7. Subsection (5) of section 723.059, Florida 

303 Statutes, is amended to read: 

304 723.059 Rights of purchaser.-

305 (5) Lifetime leases and the renewal provisions in 

306 automatically renewable leases, both those existing and those 

307 entered into after July 1, 1986, are not assumable shall be 

308 nonassumable unless otherwise provided in the mobile home lot 

309 rental agreement or unless the transferee is the home owner's 

310 spouse. The right to an assumption of the lease by a spouse may 

311 be exercised only one time during the term of that lease. ~ 

312 rener.val provisions in automatically reneHable leases, both those 

Page 12 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 307 

313 enisting and those entered into after July 1, 1986, are not 

314 assumable unless otherwise provided in the lease agreement. 

315 Section 8. Subsection (1) of section 723.0611, Florida 

316 Statutes, is amended to read: 

317 723.0611 Florida Mobile Home Relocation Corporation.-

2015 

318 (1)~ There is created the Florida Mobile Home Relocation 

319 Corporation. The corporation shall be administered by a board of 

320 directors made up of six members, three of whom shall be 

321 appointed by the Secretary of Business and Professional 

322 Regulation from a list of nominees submitted by the largest 

323 nonprofit association representing mobile home owners in this 

324 state, and three of whom shall be appointed by the Secretary of 

325 Business and Professional Regulation from a list of nominees 

326 submitted by the largest nonprofit association representing the 

327 manufactured housing industry in this state. All members of the 

328 board of directors, including the chair, shall be appointed to 

329 serve for staggered 3-year terms. 

330 (b) A member of the board of directors shall be removed 

331 from the board by the Secretary of Business and Professional 

332 Regulation, with or without cause, immediately after the written 

333 request for removal from the association in paragraph (a) that 

334 originally nominated that board member. The nominating entity 

335 must include nominees for replacement with the request for 

336 removal and the secretary must immediately fill the vacancy 

337 created by the removal. The removal process may not occur more 

338 than once in a calendar year. 

Page 13 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 307 2015 

339 Section 9. Section 723.078, Florida Statutes, is amended 

340 to read: 

341 723.078 Bylaws of homeowners' associations. In order for a 

342 homemmers' association to ocercise the rights provided in s. 

343 723.071, the bylaws of the association shall provide for the 

344 follo\Jing: 

345 (1) The directors of the association and the operation 

346 shall be governed by the bylaws. 

347 (2) The bylaws shall provide and, if they do not, shall be 

348 deemed to include, the following provisions: 

349 (a) Administration.-The form of administration of the 

350 association shall be described, providing for the titles of the 

351 officers and for a board of directors and specifying the powers, 

352 duties, manner of selection and removal, and compensation, if 

353 any, of officers and board members. Unless otherwise provided in 

354 the bylaws, the board of directors shall be composed of five 

355 members. The board of directors shall elect fta¥e a president, 

356 secretary, and treasurer who shall perform the duties of those 

357 offices customarily performed by officers of corporations, and 

358 these officers shall serve without compensation and at the 

359 pleasure of the board of directors. The board of directors may 

360 elect appoint and designate other officers and grant them those 

361 duties it deems appropriate. 

362 (b) Quorum; voting requirements; proxies.-

363 1. Unless otherwise provided in the bylaws, 30 percent of 

364 the total membership is required to constitute a quorum. A 

Page 14 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 307 2015 

365 ffiajority of the ffiembers shall constitute a quoruffi. Decisions 

366 shall be made by a majority of members represented at a meeting 

367 at which a quorum is present. In addition, provision shall be 

3 68 ffiade in the bylmJS for definition and use of prmcy. Any prmcy 

3 69 given shall be effective only for the specific ffieeting for r,;hich 

37 0 originally given and any lmvfully adjourned ffieetings thereof. In 

371 no event shall any prmcy be valid for a period longer than 120 

372 days after the date of the first ffieeting for h'hich it v:as given. 

373 Every prmcy shall be revocable at any tiffie at the pleasure of 

374 the ffiCffibCr CJCCCUting it. 

375 2. A member may not vote by general proxy but may vote by 

376 limited proxies substantially conforming to a limited proxy form 

377 adopted by the division. Limited proxies and general proxies may 

378 be used to establish a quorum. Limited proxies may be used for 

379 votes taken to amend the articles of incorporation or bylaws 

380 pursuant to this section, and any other matters for which this 

381 chapter requires or permits a vote of members, except that no 

382 proxy, limited or general, may be used in the election of board 

383 members. Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, members 

384 may vote in person at member meetings. 

385 3. A proxy is effective only for the specific meeting for 

386 which originally given and any lawfully adjourned meetings 

387 thereof. In no event shall any proxy be valid for a period 

388 longer than 90 days after the date of the first meeting for 

389 which it was given. Every proxy shall be revocable at any time 

390 at the pleasure of the member executing it. 

Page 15 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

391 4. A member of the board of directors or a committee may 

392 submit in writing his or her agreement or disagreement with any 

393 action taken at a meeting that the member did not attend. This 

394 agreement or disagreement may not be used as a vote for or 

395 against the action taken and may not be used for the purposes of 

396 creating a quorum. 

397 

398 

(c) Board of directors' and committee meetings.-

1. Meetings of the board of directors and meetings of its 

399 committees at which a quorum is present shall be open to all 

400 members. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the 

401 requirement that board meetings and committee meetings be open 

402 to the members does not apply to board or committee meetings 

403 held for the purpose of discussing personnel matters or meetings 

404 between the board or a committee and the association's attorney, 

405 with respect to potential or pending litigation, where the 

406 meeting is held for the purpose of seeking or rendering legal 

407 advice, and where the contents of the discussion would otherwise 

408 be governed by the attorney-client privilege., and Notice of 

409 meetings shall be posted in a conspicuous place upon the park 

410 property at least 48 hours in advance, except in an emergency. 

411 Notice of any meeting in which assessments against members are 

412 to be considered for any reason shall specifically contain a 
' 

413 statement that assessments will be considered and the nature of 

414 such assessments. 

415 2. A board or committee member's participation in a 

416 meeting via telephone, real-time videoconferencing, or similar 

Page 16 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

417 real-time telephonic, electronic, or video communication counts 

418 toward a quorum, and such member may vote as if physically 

419 present. A speaker shall be used so that the conversation of 

420 those board or committee members attending by telephone may be 

421 heard by the board or committee members attending in person, as 

422 well as by members present at a meeting. 

423 3. Members of the board of directors may use e-mail as a 

424 means of communication but may not cast a vote on an association 

425 matter via e-mail. 

426 4. The right to attend meetings of the board of directors 

427 and its committees includes the right to speak at such meetings 

428 with reference to all designated agenda items. The association 

429 may adopt reasonable written rules governing the frequency, 

430 duration, and manner of members' statements. Any item not 

431 included on the notice may be taken up on an emergency basis by 

432 at least a majority plus one of the members of the board. Such 

433 emergency action shall be noticed and ratified at the next 

434 regular meeting of the board. Any member may tape record or 

435 videotape meetings of the board of directors and its committees. 

436 The division shall adopt reasonable rules governing the tape 

437 recording and videotaping of the meeting. 

438 5. Except as provided in s. 723.078 (2) (i), a vacancy 

439 occurring on the board of directors may be filled by the 

440 affirmative vote of the majority of the remaining directors, 

441 even though the remaining directors constitute less than a 

442 quorum; by the sole remaining director; if the vacancy is not so 

Page 17 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

443 filled or if no director remains, by the members; or, on the 

444 application of any person, by the circuit court of the county in 

445 which the registered office of the corporation is located. 

446 6. The term of a director elected or appointed to fill a 

447 vacancy expires at the next annual meeting at which directors 

448 are elected. A directorship to be filled by reason of an 

449 increase in the number of directors may be filled by the board 

450 of directors, but only for the term of office continuing until 

451 the next election of directors by the members 

452 7. A vacancy that will occur at a specific later date, by 

453 reason of a resignation effective at a later date, may be filled 

454 before the vacancy occurs. However, the new director may not 

455 take office until the vacancy occurs. 

456 B.a. The officers and directors of the association have a 

457 fiduciary relationship to the members. 

458 b. A director and committee member shall discharge his or 

459 her duties in good faith, with the care an ordinarily prudent 

460 person in a like position would exercise under similar 

461 circumstances, and in a manner he or she reasonably believes to 

462 be in the best interests of the corporation. 

463 9. In discharging his or her duties, a director may rely 

464 on information, opinions, reports, or statements, including 

465 financial statements and other financial data, if prepared or 

466 presented by: 

467 a. One or more officers or employees of the corporation 

468 who the director reasonably believes to be reliable and 

Page 18 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 307 2015 

469 competent in the matters presented; 

470 b. Legal counsel, public accountants, or other persons as 

471 to matters the director reasonably believes are within the 

472 persons' professional or expert competence; or 

473 c. A committee of the board of directors of which he or 

474 she is not a member if the director reasonably believes the 

475 committee merits confidence. 

476 10. A director is not acting in good faith if he or she 

477 has knowledge concerning the matter in question that makes 

478 reliance otherwise permitted by subparagraph 9. unwarranted. 

479 11. A director is not liable for any action taken as a 

480 director, or any failure to take any action, if he or she 

481 performed the duties of his or her office in compliance with 

482 this section. 

483 

484 

(d) Member meetings.-

1. Members shall meet at least once each calendar year, 

485 and the meeting shall be the annual meeting. All members of the 

486 board of directors shall be elected at the annual meeting unless 

487 the bylaws provide for staggered election terms or for their 

488 election at another meeting. The bylaws shall not restrict any 

489 member desiring to be a candidate for board membership from 

490 being nominated from the floor. All nominations from the floor 

491 must be made at a duly noticed meeting of the members held at 

492 least 30 days before the annual meeting. The bylaws shall 

493 provide the method for calling the meetings of the members, 

494 including annual meetings. The method shall provide at least 14 

Page 19 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

495 days' written notice to each member in advance of the meeting 

496 and require the posting in a conspicuous place on the park 

497 property of a notice of the meeting at least 14 days prior to 

498 the meeting. The right to receive written notice of membership 

499 meetings may be waived in writing by a member. Unless waived, 

500 the notice of the annual meeting shall be mailed, hand 

501 delivered, or electronically transmitted sent by mail to each 

502 member, and shall constitute the mailing constitutes notice. An 

503 officer of the association shall provide an affidavit affirming 

504 that the notices were mailed or hand delivered in accordance 

505 with the provisions of this section to each member at the 

506 address last furnished to the corporation. These meeting 

507 requirements do not prevent members from waiving notice of 

508 meetings or from acting by written agreement without meetings, 

509 if allowed by the bylaws. 

510 (e) Minutes of meetings.-

511 1. Minutes of all meetings of members of an association, 

512 the board of directors, and a committee must be maintained in 

513 written form and approved by the members, board, or committee, 

514 as applicable. A vote or abstention from voting on each matter 

515 voted upon for each director present at a board meeting must be 

516 recorded in the minutes. 

517 2. All approved minutes of a±± meetings of membersL 

518 committees, and ~ the board of directors shall be kept in a 

519 businesslike manner and shall be available for inspection by 

520 members, or their authorized representatives, and board members 

Page 20 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 307 2015 

521 at reasonable times. The association shall retain these minutes 

522 for a period of at least not less than 7 years. 

523 (f) Manner of sharing assessments.-The share or percentage 

524 of, and manner of sharing, assessments and expenses for each 

525 member shall be stated. 

526 (g) Annual budget.-If the bylaws provide for adoption of 

527 an annual budget by the members, the board of directors shall 

528 mail a meeting notice and copies of the proposed annual budget 

529 of expenses to the members at least not less than 30 days before 

530 prior to the meeting at which the budget will be considered. If 

531 the bylaws provide that the budget may be adopted by the board 

532 of directors, the members shall be given written notice of the 

533 time and place at which the meeting of the board of directors to 

534 consider the budget will be held. The meeting shall be open to 

535 the members. If the bylaws do not provide for adoption of an 

536 annual budget, this paragraph shall not apply. 

537 

538 

(h) Amendment of articles of incorporation and bylaws.-

1. The method by which the articles of incorporation and 

539 bylaws may be amended consistent with the provisions of this 

540 chapter shall be stated. If the bylaws fail to provide a method 

541 of amendment, the bylaws may be amended by the board of 

542 directors and approved by a majority of members at a meeting at 

543 which a quorum is present of the membership. No bylaw shall be 

544 revised or amended by reference to its title or number only. 

545 2. Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, if 

546 an amendment to the articles of incorporation or the bylaws is 

Page 21 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 307 2015 

547 required by any action of any federal, state, or local 

548 governmental authority or agency, or any law, ordinance, or rule 

549 thereof, the board of directors may, by a majority vote of the 

550 board, at a duly noticed meeting of the board, amend the 

551 articles of incorporation or bylaws without a vote of the 

552 membership. 

553 (i) The officers and directors of the association have a 

554 fiduciary relationship to the FReffibers. 

555 +j+ Recall of board members.-Any member of the board of 

556 directors may be recalled and removed from office with or 

557 without cause by the vote of or agreement in writing by a 

558 majority of all members. A special meeting of the members to 

559 recall a member or members of the board of directors may be 

560 called by 10 percent of the members giving notice of the meeting 

561 as required for a meeting of members, and the notice shall state 

562 the purpose of the meeting. Electronic transmission may not be 

563 used as a method of giving notice of a meeting called in whole 

564 or in part for this purpose. 

565 1. If the recall is approved by a majority of all members 

566 by a vote at a meeting, the recall is effective as provided in 

567 this paragraph. The board shall duly notice and hold a board 

568 meeting within 5 full business days after the adjournment of the 

569 member meeting to recall one or more board members. At the 

570 meeting, the board shall either certify the recall, in which 

571 case such member or members shall be recalled effective 

572 immediately and shall turn over to the board within 5 full 

Page 22 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 307 

573 business days any and all records and property of the 

574 association in their possession, or shall proceed under 

575 subparagraph 3. 

2015 

576 2. If the proposed recall is by an agreement in writing by 

577 a majority of all members, the agreement in writing or a copy 

578 thereof shall be served on the association by certified mail or 

579 by personal service in the manner authorized by chapter 48 and 

580 the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure. The board of directors 

581 shall duly notice and hold a meeting of the board within 5 full 

582 business days after receipt of the agreement in writing. At the 

583 meeting, the board shall either certify the written agreement to 

584 recall members of the board, in which case such members shall be 

585 recalled effective immediately and shall turn over to the board, 

586 within 5 full business days, any and all records and property of 

587 the association in their possession, or shall proceed as 

588 described in subparagraph 3. 

589 3. If the board determines not to certify the written 

590 agreement to recall members of the board, or does not certify 

591 the recall by a vote at a meeting, the board shall, within 5 

592 full business days after the board meeting, file with the 

593 division a petition for binding arbitration pursuant to the 

594 procedures of s. 723.1255. For purposes of this paragraph, the 

595 members who voted at the meeting or who executed the agreement 

596 in writing shall constitute one party under the petition for 

597 arbitration. If the arbitrator certifies the recall of a member 

598 of the board, the recall shall be effective upon mailing of the 

Page 23 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

599 

600 

601 

602 

603 

604 

605 

606 

607 

608 

609 

610 

611 

612 

613 

614 

615 

616 

617 

618 

619 

620 

621 

622 

HB 307 2015 

final order of arbitration to the association. If the 

association fails to comply with the order of the arbitrator, 

the division may take action under s. 723.006. A member so 

recalled shall deliver to the board any and all records and 

property of the association in the member's possession within 5 

full business days after the effective date of the recall. 

4. If the board fails to duly notice and hold a board 

meeting within 5 full business days after service of an 

agreement in writing or within 5 full business days after the 

adjournment of the members' recall meeting, the recall shall be 

deemed effective and the board members so recalled shall 

immediately turn over to the board all records and property of 

the association. 

5. If the board fails to duly notice and hold the required 

meeting or fails to file the required petition, the member's 

representative may file a petition pursuant to s. 723.1255 

challenging the board's failure to act. The petition must be 

filed within 60 days after expiration of the applicable 5-full

business-day period. The review of a petition under this 

subparagraph is limited to the sufficiency of service on the 

board and the facial validity of the written agreement or 

ballots filed. 

6. If a vacancy occurs on the board as a result of a 

recall and less than a majority of the board members are 

623 removed, the vacancy may be filled by the affirmative vote of a 

624 majority of the remaining directors, notwithstanding any other 

Page 24 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 307 2015 

625 provision of this chapter. If vacancies occur on the board as a 

626 result of a recall and a majority or more of the board members 

627 are removed, the vacancies shall be filled in accordance with 

628 procedural rules to be adopted by the division, which rules need 

629 not be consistent with this chapter. The rules must provide 

630 procedures governing the conduct of the recall election as well 

631 as the operation of the association during the period after a 

632 recall but before the recall election. 

633 7. A board member who has been recalled may file a 

634 petition pursuant to s. 723.1255 challenging the validity of the 

635 recall. The petition must be filed within 60 days after the 

636 recall is deemed certified. The association and the member's 

637 representative shall be named as the respondents. 

638 8. The division may not accept for filing a recall 

639 petition, whether or not filed pursuant to this subsection, and 

640 regardless of whether the recall was certified, when there are 

641 60 or fewer days until the scheduled reelection of the board 

642 member sought to be recalled or when 60 or fewer days have not 

643 elapsed since the election of the board member sought to be 

64 4 recalled. 

645 

646 

(3) The bylaws may provide the following: 

(a) A method of adopting and of amending administrative 

647 rules and regulations governing the details of the operation and 

648 use of the park property. 

649 (b) Restrictions on, and requirements respecting, the use 

650 and maintenance of mobile homes located within the park, and the 

Page 25 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 307 2015 

651 use of the park property, which restrictions and requirements 

652 are not inconsistent with the articles of incorporation. 

653 (c) Other provisions not inconsistent with this chapter or 

654 with other documents governing the park property or mobile homes 

655 located therein. 

656 

657 

658 

659 

660 

661 

662 

663 

664 

665 

666 

667 

668 

669 

670 

671 

672 

(d) The board of directors may, in any event, propose a 

budget to the members at a meeting of members or in writing, 

and, if the budget or proposed budget is approved by the members 

at the meeting or by a majority of their whole number in 

writing, that budget shall be adopted. 

(e) The manner of collecting from the members their shares 

of the expenses for maintenance of the park property shall be 

stated. Assessments shall be made against members not less 

frequently than quarterly, in amounts no less than are required 

to provide funds in advance for payments of all of the 

anticipated current operating expenses and for all of the unpaid 

operating expense previously incurred. 

(4) No amendment may change the proportion or percentage 

by which members share in the assessments and expenses as 

initially established unless all the members affected by such 

change approve the amendment. 

(5) Upon purchase of the mobile home park, the association 

673 organized under this chapter may convert to a condominium, 

674 cooperative, or subdivision. The directors shall have the 

675 authority to amend and restate the articles of incorporation and 

676 bylaws in order to comply with the requirements of chapter 718, 

Page 26 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 307 

677 chapter 719, or other applicable sections of the Florida 

678 Statutes. 

2015 

679 (6) Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 723.075(1), upon 

680 purchase of the park by the association, and conversion of the 

681 association to a condominium, cooperative, or subdivision, the 

682 mobile home owners who were members of the association prior to 

683 the conversion and who no longer meet the requirements for 

684 membership, as established by the amended or restated articles 

685 of incorporation and bylaws, shall no longer be members of the 

686 converted association. Mobile home owners, as defined in this 

687 chapter, who no longer are eligible for membership in the 

688 converted association may form an association pursuant to s. 

689 723.075. 

690 Section 10. Section 723.1255, Florida Statutes, is created 

691 to read: 

692 723.1255 Alternative resolution of recall disputes.-The 

693 Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes 

694 of the Department of Business and Professional Regulation shall 

695 adopt rules of procedure to govern binding recall arbitration 

696 proceedings. 

697 Section 11. Section 723.0781, Florida Statutes, is created 

698 to read: 

699 723.0781 Board member training programs.-Within 90 days 

700 after being elected or appointed to the board, a newly elected 

701 or appointed director shall certify by an affidavit in writing 

702 to the secretary of the association that he or she has read the 

Page 27 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

703 association's current articles of incorporation, bylaws, and the 

704 mobile home park's prospectus, rental agreement, rules, 

705 regulations, and written policies; that he or she will work to 

706 uphold such documents and policies to the best of his or her 

707 ability; and that he or she will faithfully discharge his or her 

708 fiduciary responsibility to the association's members. In lieu 

709 of this written certification, within 90 days after being 

710 elected or appointed to the board, the newly elected or 

711 appointed director may submit a certificate of having 

712 satisfactorily completed the educational curriculum approved by 

713 the division within 1 year before or 90 days after the date of 

714 election or appointment. The educational certificate is valid 

715 and does not have to be resubmitted as long as the director 

716 serves on the board without interruption. A director who fails 

717 to timely file the written certification or educational 

718 certificate is suspended from service on the board until he or 

719 she complies with this section. The board may temporarily fill 

720 the vacancy during the period of suspension. The secretary of 

721 the association shall retain a director's written certification 

722 or educational certificate for inspection by the members for 5 

723 years after the director's election or the duration of the 

724 director's uninterrupted tenure, whichever is longer. Failure to 

725 have such written certification or educational certificate on 

726 file does not affect the validity of any board action. 

727 Section 12. Section 723.079, Florida Statutes, is amended 

728 to read: 

Page 28 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R 0 A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

729 723.079 Powers and duties of homeowners' association.-

730 (1) An association may contract, sue, or be sued with 

731 respect to the exercise or nonexercise of its powers. For these 

732 purposes, the powers of the association include, but are not 

733 limited to, the maintenance, management, and operation of the 

734 park property. 

735 (2) The powers and duties of an association include those 

736 set forth in this section and ss. 723.075 and 723.077 and those 

737 set forth in the articles of incorporation and bylaws and any 

738 recorded declarations or restrictions encumbering the park 

739 property, if not inconsistent with this chapter. 

740 (3) An association has the power to make, levy, and 

741 collect assessments and to lease, maintain, repair, and replace 

742 the common areas upon purchase of the mobile home park. 

743 (4) The association shall maintain the following items, 

744 when applicable, which constitute the official records of the 

7 45 association: 

746 (a) A copy of the association's articles of incorporation 

747 and each amendment to the articles of incorporation. 

748 (b) A copy of the bylaws of the association and each 

749 amendment to the bylaws. 

750 (c) A copy of the written rules or policies of the 

751 association and each amendment to the written rules or policies. 

752 (d) The approved minutes of all meetings of the members, 

753 the board of directors, and committees of the board, which 

754 minutes must be retained within the state for at least 7 years. 

Page 29 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

755 (e) A current roster of all members and their mailing 

756 addresses and lot identifications. The association shall also 

757 maintain the e-mail addresses and the numbers designated by 

758 members for receiving notice sent by electronic transmission of 

759 those members consenting to receive notice by electronic 

760 transmission. The e-mail addresses and numbers provided by 

761 members to receive notice by electronic transmission shall be 

762 removed from association records when consent to receive notice 

763 by electronic transmission is revoked. However, the association 

764 is not liable for an erroneous disclosure of the e-mail address 

765 or the number for receiving electronic transmission of notices. 

766 (f) All of the association's insurance policies or copies 

767 thereof, which must be retained for at least 7 years. 

768 (g) A copy of all contracts or agreements to which the 

769 association is a party, including, without limitation, any 

770 written agreements with the park owner, lease, or other 

771 agreements or contracts under which the association or its 

772 members has any obligation or responsibility, which must be 

773 retained for at least 7 years. 

774 (h) The financial and accounting records of the 

775 association, kept according to good accounting practices. All 

776 financial and accounting records must be maintained for a period 

777 of at least 7 years. The financial and accounting records must 

778 include: 

779 1. Accurate, itemized, and detailed records of all 

780 receipts and expenditures. 

Page 30 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

781 2. A current account and a periodic statement of the 

782 account for each member, designating the name and current 

783 address of each member who is obligated to pay dues or 

784 assessments, the due date and amount of each assessment or other 

785 charge against the member, the date and amount of each payment 

786 on the account, and the balance due. 

787 3. All tax returns, financial statements, and financial 

788 reports of the association. 

789 4. Any other records that identify, measure, record, or 

790 communicate financial information. 

791 (i) All other written records of the association not 

792 specifically included in the foregoing which are related to the 

793 operation of the association. 

794 (5) The official records shall be maintained within the 

795 state for at least 7 years and shall be made available to a 

796 member for inspection or photocopying within 10 business days 

797 after receipt by the board or its designee of a written request 

798 submitted by certified mail, return receipt requested. The 

799 requirements of this subsection are satisfied by having a copy 

BOO of the official records available for inspection or copying in 

801 the park or, at the option of the association, by making the 

802 records available to a member electronically via the Internet or 

803 by allowing the records to be viewed in electronic format on a 

804 computer screen and printed upon request. If the association has 

805 a photocopy machine available where the records are maintained, 

806 it must provide a member with copies on request during the 

Page 31 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

807 inspection if the entire request is no more than 25 pages. An 

808 association shall allow a member or his or her authorized 

809 representative to use a portable device, including a smartphone, 

810 tablet, portable scanner, or any other technology capable of 

811 scanning or taking photographs, to make an electronic copy of 

812 the official records in lieu of the association's providing the 

813 member or his or her authorized representative with a copy of 

814 such records. The association may not charge a fee to a member 

815 or his or her authorized representative for the use of a 

816 portable device. 

817 (a) The failure of an association to provide access to the 

818 records within 10 business days after receipt of a written 

819 request submitted by certified mail, return receipt requested, 

820 creates a rebuttable presumption that the association willfully 

821 failed to comply with this subsection. 

822 (b) A member who is denied access to official records is 

823 entitled to the actual damages or minimum damages for the 

824 association's willful failure to comply with this subsection. 

825 The minimum damages are to be $10 per calendar day up to 10 

826 days, the calculation to begin on the 11th business day after 

827 receipt of the written request, submitted by certified mail, 

828 return receipt requested. 

829 

830 

831 

832 

(c) The association may adopt reasonable written rules 

governing the frequency, time, location, notice, records to be 

inspected, and manner of inspections, but may not require a 

member to demonstrate a proper purpose for the inspection, state 

Page 32 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 307 2015 

833 a reason for the inspection, or limit a member's right to 

834 inspect records to less than 1 business day per month. The 

835 association may impose fees to cover the costs of providing 

836 copies of the official records, including the costs of copying 

837 and for personnel to retrieve and copy the records if the time 

838 spent retrieving and copying the records exceeds 30 minutes and 

839 if the personnel costs do not exceed $20 per hour. Personnel 

840 costs may not be charged for records requests that result in the 

841 copying of 25 or fewer pages. The association may charge up to 

842 25 cents per page for copies made on the association's 

843 photocopier. If the association does not have a photocopy 

844 machine available where the records are kept, or if the records 

845 requested to be copied exceed 25 pages in length, the 

846 association may have copies made by an outside duplicating 

847 service and may charge the actual cost of copying, as supported 

848 by the vendor invoice. The association shall maintain an 

849 adequate number of copies of the recorded governing documents, 

850 to ensure their availability to members and prospective members. 

851 Notwithstanding this paragraph, the following records are not 

852 accessible to members or home owners: 

853 1. A record protected by the lawyer-client privilege as 

854 described in s. 90.502 and a record protected by the work-

855 product privilege, including, but not limited to, a record 

856 prepared by an association attorney or prepared at the 

857 attorney's express direction which reflects a mental impression, 

858 conclusion, litigation strategy, or legal theory of the attorney 

Page 33 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

859 or the association and which was prepared exclusively for civil 

860 or criminal litigation, for adversarial administrative 

861 proceedings, or in anticipation of such litigation or 

862 proceedings until the conclusion of the litigation or 

8 63 proceedings. 

864 2. E-mail addresses, telephone numbers, facsimile numbers, 

865 emergency contact information, any addresses for a home owner 

866 other than as provided for association notice requirements, and 

867 other personal identifying information of any person, excluding 

868 the person's name, lot designation, mailing address, and 

869 property address. Notwithstanding the restrictions in this 

870 subparagraph, an association may print and distribute to home 

871 owners a directory containing the name, park address, and 

872 telephone number of each home owner. However, a home owner may 

873 exclude his or her telephone number from the directory by so 

874 requesting in writing to the association. The association is not 

875 liable for the disclosure of information that is protected under 

876 this subparagraph if the information is included in an official 

877 record of the association and is voluntarily provided by a home 

878 owner and not requested by the association. 

879 3. A electronic security measure that is used by the 

880 association to safeguard data, including passwords. 

881 4. The software and operating system used by the 

882 association which allows the manipulation of data, even if the 

883 home owner owns a copy of the same software used by the 

884 association. The data is part of the official records of the 

Page 34 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

885 association. 

886 ( 6) An outgoing board or committee member must relinquish 

887 all official records and property of the association in his or 

888 her possession or under his or her control to the incoming board 

889 within 5 days after the election or removal. An association 

890 shall maintain accounting records in the county Hhere the 

891 property is located, according to good accounting practices. The 

892 records shall be open to inspection by association members or 

893 their authorized representatives at reasonable times, and 

894 written suffiffiaries of such records shall be supplied at least 

895 annually to such members or their authorized representatives. 

896 The failure of the association to permit inspection of its 

897 accounting records by members or their authorized 

898 representatives entitles any person prevailing in an enforcement 

899 action to recover reasonable attorney's fees from the person in 

900 control of the boolcs and records v;ho, directly or indirectly, 

901 lmmdngly denied access to the boolcs and records for inspection. 

902 The records shall include, but shall not be limited to: 

903 

904 

(a) 

(b) 

A record of all receipts and expenditures. 

An account for each member, designating the name and 

905 current mailing address of the member, the amount of each 

90 6 assessment, the dates on which and amounts in 'n'hich the 

907 assessments come due, the amount paid upon the account, and the 

908 balance due. 

909 J2l+§+ An association has the power to purchase lots in 

910 the park and to acquire, hold, lease, mortgage, and convey them. 

Page 35 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 307 2015 

911 ~~ An association shall use its best efforts to obtain 

912 and maintain adequate insurance to protect the association and 

913 the park property upon purchase of the mobile home park. A copy 

914 of each policy of insurance in effect shall be made available 

915 for inspection by owners at reasonable times. 

916 J2l~ An association has the authority, without the 

917 joinder of any home owner, to modify, move, or create any 

918 easement for ingress and egress or for the purpose of utilities 

919 if the easement constitutes part of or crosses the park property 

920 upon purchase of the mobile home park. This subsection does not 

921 authorize the association to modify or move any easement created 

922 in whole or in part for the use or benefit of anyone other than 

923 the members, or crossing the property of anyone other than the 

924 members, without his or her consent or approval as required by 

925 law or the instrument creating the easement. Nothing in this 

926 subsection affects the rights of ingress or egress of any member 

927 of the association. 

928 JlQl+&t Any mobile home owners' association or group of 

929 residents of a mobile home park as defined in this chapter may 

930 conduct bingo games as provided in s. 849.0931. 

931 Jlll+9+ An association organized under this chapter may 

932 offer subscriptions, for the purpose of raising the necessary 

933 funds to purchase, acquire, and operate the mobile home park, to 

934 its members or other owners of mobile homes within the park. 

935 Subscription funds collected for the purpose of purchasing the 

936 park shall be placed in an association or other escrow account 

Page 36 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 307 

937 prior to purchase, which funds shall be held according to the 

938 terms of the subscription agreement. The directors shall 

939 maintain accounting records according to generally accepted 

940 accounting practices and shall, upon written request by a 

941 subscriber, furnish an accounting of the subscription fund 

2015 

942 escrow account within 60 days of the purchase of the park or the 

943 ending date as provided in the subscription agreement, whichever 

944 occurs first. 

945 ~+±G+ For a period of 180 days after the date of a 

946 purchase of a mobile home park by the association, the 

947 association shall not be required to comply with the provisions 

948 of part V of chapter 718~ er part V of chapter 719, or part II 

949 of chapter 720, as to mobile home owners or persons who have 

950 executed contracts to purchase mobile homes in the park. 

951 Jlll+±±+ The provisions of subsections subsection (4) and 

952 J2l shall not apply to records relating to subscription funds 

953 collected pursuant to subsection (11) +9+. 

954 Section 13. This act shall take effect July 1, 2015. 

Page 37 of 37 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0307-00 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 307 (2015) 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECTION 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WITHDRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Civil Justice Subcommittee 

2 Representative Latvala offered the following: 

3 

4 Amendment (with title amendment) 

5 -----------------------------------------------------

6 T I T L E A M E N D M E N T 

7 Remove lines 27-34 and insert: 

8 revising requirements for the recall of board members; creating 

9 s. 723.1255, F.S.; providing requirements for the alternative 

10 resolution of recall disputes; creating s. 723.0781, F.S.; 

11 specifying certification or educational requirements for a newly 

12 elected or appointed board member; 

048279 - h0307-line 27.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 5:53:01 PM 

Page 1 of 1 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 2 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 307 (2015) 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECTION 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WITHDRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Civil Justice Subcommittee 

2 Representative Latvala offered the following: 

3 

4 

5 

6 

Amendment 

Between lines 104 and 105, insert: 

(7) (a) "Mediation" means a process whereby a mediator 

7 appointed by the Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, 

8 and Mobile Homes or mutually selected by the parties acts to 

9 encourage and facilitate the resolution of a dispute. It is an 

10 informal and nonadversarial process with the objective of 

11 helping the disputing parties reach a mutually acceptable 

12 agreement. 

13 (b) For purposes of mediation, under s. 723.037 and s. 

14 723.038, the term "parties" means a park owner as defined by s. 

15 723.003(13) and a homeowners' committee selected pursuant to s. 

16 723.037. 

17 

160859 - h0307-line 104.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 5:54:16 PM 

Page 1 of 1 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 3 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 307 (2015) 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECTION 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WITHDRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Civil Justice Subcommittee 

2 Representative Latvala offered the following: 

3 

4 Amendment 

5 Remove line 124 and insert: 

6 (10)--f-§-)- The term "Mobile horne owner_!._" "mobile homeowner," 

7 e-r- "horne owner_!._" or "homeowner" means 

504217 - h0307-line 124.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 5:54:49 PM 

Page 1 of 1 





HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS 

BILL#: HB 343 Estates 
SPONSOR(S): Moraitis 
TIED BILLS: None IDEN./SIM. BILLS: None 

REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST 

1) Civil Justice Subcommittee 

2) Finance & Tax Committee 

3) Judiciary Committee 

SUMMARY ANALYSIS 

STAFF DIRECTOR or 

BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF 

The federal government and many states impose a tax on the estate of a decedent for the privilege of 
transferring property at death, known as the "estate tax." Current law provides for the apportionment and 
orderly collection of estate taxes imposed against a Florida decedent's estate under federal and state laws. 
This law has not been substantially revised since 1998 although a number of significant changes have 
occurred in federal and state tax laws since that time, including the elimination of the ability of Florida to collect 
an estate tax. 

This bill substantially revises the estate tax apportionment law, to: 

• Update the statute for consistency with changes in federal estate tax laws. 

• Codify case law governing estate tax apportionment. 

• Address "gaps" in the current statutory apportionment framework. 

• Make technical, stylistic, and organizational changes. 

This bill does not revive or affect the collection of estate taxes by the State of Florida. 

This bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments. 

This bill takes effect July 1, 2015, although portions are retroactive. 

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives. 
STORAGE NAME· h0343.CJS DOCX 
DATE: 2/8/2015 



FULL ANALYSIS 

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS 

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES: 

Section 733.817, F.S., provides for the allocation, apportionment, and orderly collection of estate tax 
imposed against a Florida decedent's estate under federal and state laws. The section is, like many 
other probate provisions, a default provision governing administration of the estate in situations where 
the decedent failed to properly plan for the orderly administration of the estate. Note too that the estate 
tax under current federal law only applies to an estate valued in excess of $5,430,000. 1 

Section 733.817, F.S. has not been substantially revised since 1998 although a number of significant 
changes have occurred in federal and state tax laws since that time, including the elimination of the 
federal credit for state death taxes and, by extension, the Florida estate tax. 

This bill substantially revises s. 733.817, F.S., to: 

• Update the statute for consistency with changes in federal estate tax laws. 
• Codify case law governing estate tax apportionment. 
• Address "gaps" in the current statutory apportionment framework. 
• Make technical, stylistic, and organizational changes. 

This bill does not revive or affect the collection of estate taxes by the State of Florida. 

Estate Tax: Overview 

The federal government imposes a tax on the estate of a decedent for the privilege of transferring 
property at death, known as the "estate tax. "2 In general, the tax is calculated by assessing the total fair 
market value of all property owned or controlled by the decedent at the time of death, 3 the "gross 
estate," and subtracting allowable deductions4 to determine the "taxable estate." The value of lifetime 
taxable gifts is added to the "taxable estate" and the tax is computed based upon the combined 
amount, minus the applicable exclusion amount. 5 

Prior to 2005, Florida also imposed an estate tax "upon the transfer of the estate of every person who, 
at the time of death, was a resident of this state .... "6 Florida also levied an estate tax on every 
person who at the time of death was not a resident of this state, but was a resident of the United States 
for the transfer of property situated in the state.7 The Florida Constitution prescribes, in part, the 
parameters for the state's imposition of the estate tax, by prohibiting any estate tax upon Florida 
residents in excess the amount that may be credited upon or deducted from the federal estate tax or 
another state's estate tax. 8 Thus the tax on the estate of a Florida decedent did not increase the overall 
estate tax, but instead apportioned the total estate tax between the federal government and the state. 
The Florida estate tax was what is known as a "pick-up" tax, which only "picks-up" taxes that would 
have otherwise been paid to the federal government. 

1 For tax year 2015. The amount is adjusted annually for inflation. See 26 U.S.C. § 2010(c)(3) and IR-2014-104, Oct. 30, 
2014. 
2 I.R.C. §§ 2001-2801. 
3 The gross estate also includes certain life insurance proceeds, the value of certain annuities, the value of certain 
property transferred within three years of death, trusts or other interests in which the decedent held certain powers. 
4 Allowable deductions include the marital deduction, charitable deduction, mortgages and debt, administration expenses 
of the estate, and losses during estate administration. 
5 The applicable exclusion amount for estates of decedents dying in 2015 is $5,430,000. 
6 Section 198.02, F S. 
7 Section 198.03, F.S. 
8 FLA. CONST. art. VII, s. 5(a). 
STORAGE NAME· h0343.CJS DOCX PAGE: 2 
DATE. 2/8/2015 



While the Florida estate tax provisions are still set forth in the Florida statutes,9 Florida does not 
currently have a state level estate tax. In 2001, Congress passed the Economic Growth and Tax Relief 
Reconciliation Act of 2001. 10 That federal legislation phased out over a 5-year period, starting in 2002, 
the credit for state death taxes. Because Florida's estate tax is coupled or tied to the federal estate tax, 
the change effectively eliminated the state estate tax. Unless Congress acts to reinstate the credit for 
state taxes or the Florida Constitution is amended to allow for imposition of the tax independently of the 
federal credit, Florida may not reinstate an estate tax. 

Nevertheless, where estate taxes are due to the federal government or to another state from a Florida 
decedent, s. 733.817, F.S. determines how much tax is attributable to each interest included in the 
measure of the tax. The statute also determines who is charged with payment of the tax attributable to 
various interests included in the measure of the tax, determines whether a decedent has effectively 
directed against statutory apportionment, and resolves conflicting apportionment provisions in 
governing instruments. 

Allocation of Estate Taxes on Gifts Made Just Prior to Death 

Section 733.817(3), F.S. provides that in determining the amount oftax attributable to an interest in 
property, only interests included in the measure of the particular tax11 are considered. The tax is 
determined by the proportion that the value of each interest included in the measure of the tax bears to 
the total value of all interests included in the measure of the tax. The decedent's gross estate for estate 
tax purposes includes gift taxes paid on gifts made within three years of death12 and, if the decedent 
dies within 5 years of a gift to a qualified tuition program (commonly known as a "529 Plan") that 
exceeds the gift tax annual exclusion, 13 his or her gross estate also includes the portion of such 
contributions properly allocable to periods after the date of death.14 

Presently, ss. 733.817(5)(a)-(c), F.S., do not apportion the estate tax on those gift taxes, and the gift 
taxes are not otherwise excluded from the measure of the tax. Therefore, the net tax attributable to the 
gift taxes is apportionable under s. 733.817(5){f), F.S., a "catch-all provision" which provides that the 
net tax that is not apportioned under s. 733.817(5)(a)-(c), F.S., be apportioned among the recipients of 
the remaining interests in the measure of the tax. A majority of decedents do not intend that the 
recipients of their gift bear the burden of the estate tax as such gifts often consist of contributions to 
529 plans for minors or college aged relatives. 

The bill amends s. 733.817(1)(d), F.S., the definition of "included in the measure of the tax," to exclude 
gift taxes paid within three years of the decedent's death and gifts to a 529 Plan. Recipients of the gift 
will not be allocated the estate tax upon such gifts even though the gift taxes remain a part of the 
amount upon which the estate tax is calculated. The effect is that the allocation of tax on all other 
interests remaining in the measure of the federal estate tax will be increased. The exclusion of the gift 

9 Chapter 198, F.S. 
10 Pub. L. 107-16 (June 7, 2001); 115 Stat. 38. 
11 "Included in the measure of the tax" means that for each separate tax that an interest may incur, only interests included 
in the measure of that particular tax are considered. It does not include any interest, whether passing under the will or not, 
to the extent the interest is imtially deductible from the gross estate, without regard to any subsequent reduction of the 
deduction by reason of the charge of any part of the applicable tax to the interest or interests or amounts that are not 
included in the gross estate but are included in the amount upon which the applicable tax is computed, such as adjusted 
taxable gifts with respect to the federal estate tax. If an election is required for deductibility, an interest is not "initially 
deductible" unless the election for deductibility is allowed. Section 733.817(1 )(d), F.S. 
12 26 U.S.C § 2035(b) 
13 Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code permits a donor to gift an amount in excess of the annual g1ft tax exclusion to 
a qualified tuit1on program on behalf of any designated beneficiary which may then be treated as having been made over 
a five year penod. 
14 26 U.S.C. § 529(c)(4)(C) 
STORAGE NAME: h0343 CJS DOCX PAGE: 3 
DATE 2/8/2015 



taxes from the measure of the tax applies only to the estates of decedents dying on or after July 1, 
2015. 

Apportionment of Estate Taxes 

Statutory Apportionment -- Property passing under a will or trust 

In the absence of an effective direction by the decedent in a governing instrument, estate taxes are 
apportioned pursuant to s. 733.817(5}, F.S. 

For property passing under a will or trust, the net tax attributable to nonresiduary devises or interests is 
charged to and paid from the residuary estate or portion whether or not all interests in the residuary 
estate or portion are included in the measure of the tax. If the residuary estate or portion is insufficient 
to pay the net tax attributable to all nonresiduary devises or interests, the balance of the net tax 
attributable to nonresiduary devises or interests is apportioned among the recipients of the 
nonresiduary devises or interests in the proportion that the value of each nonresiduary devise or 
interests included in the measure of the tax bears to the total of all nonresiduary devises or interests 
included in the measure of the tax. The net tax attributable to residuary devises or interests are 
apportioned among the recipients of the residuary devises or interests included in the measure of tax in 
the proportion that the value of each residuary devise or interests included in the measure of the tax 
bears to the total of all residuary devises or interests included in the measure of the tax. 15 The 
provisions are silent, however, with respect to which devises or interests would be charged with the tax 
if the residuary is insufficient. 

The bill moves the allocation to subsection (3) and provides that if the residuary estate or portion of a 
will or trust is insufficient to pay the net tax attributable to all residuary devises or interests, the tax must 
be apportioned among the recipients of the nonresiduary devises or interests in the proportion that the 
value of each nonresiduary devise or interests included in the measure of the tax bears to the total of 
all non residuary devises or interests included in the measure of the tax. 

Statutory Apportionment -- Protected Homestead 

Section 733.817(5)(c}, F.S. provides that the net tax attributable to an interest in protected homestead16 

is apportioned against the recipients of other interests in the estate or passing under any revocable 
trust in the following order of priority: 17 

• Class 1: Recipients of interests not disposed of by the decedent's will or revocable trust that are 
included in the measure of the federal estate tax. This includes recipients of exempt property, 
the family allowance, elective share, pretermitted shares, and property passing by intestacy. 

• Class II: Recipients of residuary devises and residuary interests that are included in the 
measure of the federal estate tax. 

• Class Ill: Recipients of nonresiduary devises and nonresiduary interests that are included in the 
measure of the federal estate tax. 

Property that is not included in the measure of the tax, such as property qualifying for the marital or 
charitable deduction, does not bear the burden of payment of tax on protected homestead. The 

15 Section 733.817(5)(a) and (b), F.S. 
16 "Protected homestead" means the property described in s. 4(a)(1 ), Art. X of the State Constitution on which at the death 
of the owner the exemption inures to the owner's surviving spouse or heirs under s. 4(b), Art. X of the State Constitution. 
For purposes of the code, real property owned in tenancy by the entireties or in joint tenancy with rights of survivorship is 
not protected homestead. Section 731.201 (33), F. S. 
17 Section 733.817(5)(c), F.S. 
STORAGE NAME· h0343 CJS.DOCX PAGE: 4 
DATE: 2/8/2015 



purposes of the Probate Code provisions for exempt property, family allowance, and elective share are 
defeated by charging those interests with the estate tax on the protected homestead. Further, although 
s. 733.817(2), F.S. provides that protected homestead is exempt from tax, the statute does not specify 
an additional source of payment if the property designated pursuant to s. 733.817(5)(c), F.S. is 
insufficient. 

For estates of decedents dying on or after July 1, 2015, the bill provides that the tax on exempt 
property and the family allowance is to be apportioned against other estate and revocable trust property 
in the same manner as the tax on protected homestead. Elective share property is no longer charged 
with the payment of estate tax on protected homestead (and now exempt property and family 
allowance). However, any property passing to the spouse which is in excess of the elective share is not 
excused from payment of the tax to the extent the excess property is included in Class I, II or Ill. Under 
the bill, the classes charged with payment of tax on protected homestead, family allowance, and 
exempt property in order of priority, are: 

• Class 1: Recipients of property passing by intestacy. 

• Class II: Recipients of residuary devises, residuary interests, and pretermitted shares. 

• Class Ill: Recipients of nonresiduary devises and nonresiduary interests. 

If the assets in Classes I, II, and Ill are exhausted, the remaining tax is apportioned proportionately to 
the protected homestead, exempt property and family allowance. However, the tax may not be 
apportioned against the elective share. If the balance of the net tax attributable to protected 
homestead, exempt property, or the family allowance not apportioned by the above is to be apportioned 
according to the proportion that the value of each bears to the total value of taxable interests. 

Apportionment at Direction of Decedent 

Section 733.817(5)(h)1., F.S. provides that a decedent may direct against statutory apportionment 
through the terms of a governing instrument such as a will or trust. 

Specificity Requirement 

For a direction in a governing instrument to be effective to direct payment of taxes attributable to 
property not passing under the governing instrument from property passing under the governing 
instrument, the governing instrument must expressly refer to s. 733.817(5)(h)4., F.S., "this section", or 
expressly indicate that the property passing under the governing instrument is to bear the burden of 
taxation for property not passing under the governing instrument. A direction in the governing 
instrument to the effect that all taxes are to be paid from property passing under the governing 
instrument whether attributable to property passing under the governing instrument or otherwise is 
effective to direct the payment from property passing under the governing instrument of taxes 
attributable to property not passing under the governing instrument. 

The bill deletes the provision for directing against default apportionment by reference to "this section," 
and provides that a direction against default apportionment may only be achieved by "express 
direction." An express direction in the governing instruments to the effect that all taxes are to be paid 
from property passing under the governing instrument whether attributable to property passing under 
the governing instrument or otherwise is generally effective for this purpose. This requirement applies 
to estates of all decedents dying on or after July 1, 2015. 

However, this express general direction is not effective to waive rights of recovery provided in sections 
2207 A, 22078 and 2603 of the Internal Revenue Code, all of which require greater specificity. Those 
statutes provide that the decedent may direct otherwise, but they require the decedent to specifically 
indicate the intent to waive the right of recovery under those statutes. The purpose of the Internal 

STORAGE NAME: h0343.CJS.DOCX 
DATE. 2/8/2015 

PAGE: 5 



Revenue Code provisions requiring specificity in directing against a right of recovery is not to raise 
revenue but to guard against the decedent's inadvertent waiver of those rights for the benefit of the 
estate. 

The bill describes and codifies what is sufficient to comply with the specificity requirements of sections 
2207 A, 22078, and 2603 of the Internal Revenue Code. It also provides that a general statement in a 
decedent's will or revocable trust waiving all rights of recovery under the Internal Revenue Code is not 
an express waiver of the rights of recovery provided in sections 2207 A or 22078 of the Internal 
Revenue Code. Such provision reflects current law. 

Adopting tax apportionment provisions in a revocable trust 

The Internal Revenue Code enables the personal representative of the estate to recover the estate tax 
attributable to life insurance or property subject to a general power of appointment from the 
beneficiaries of those interests, but provides that the decedent may direct otherwise by will. Many 
decedents put their tax apportionment provisions in their revocable trusts. Section 733.817(5)(h)2., 
F.S., provides that a provision in the will that the tax is to be apportioned as provided in the revocable 
trust is deemed to be a direction in the will as well as the revocable trust. 

The bill requires that the provision in the will adopting the apportionment provisions of the revocable 
trust and the apportionment provision of the revocable trust must be express in order to be effective. 

Directing that taxes are paid from revocable trust 

Current law permits the decedent's will to direct that estate taxes be paid from the decedent's 
revocable trust unless the trust contains a contrary provision. 18 It is implicit in current law that the 
revocable trust that is to pay the tax must be specifically identified and that for an apportionment 
provision in the revocable trust to be contrary, it must be express. The bill requires that the direction in 
the will to pay from the revocable trust must contain a specific reference to the trust, and that for an 
apportionment provision in the revocable trust to be considered contrary, it must be an express 
direction. 

Conflicting Provisions 

If there is a conflict as to payment of taxes between the decedent's will and the governing instrument, 
the decedent's will controls, except that the governing instrument will be given effect with respect to any 
tax remaining unpaid after the application of the decedent's will and a direction in a governing 
instrument to pay the tax attributable to assets that pass pursuant to the governing instrument from 
assets that pass pursuant to that governing instrument is effective notwithstanding any conflict with the 
decedent's will, unless the tax provision in the decedent's will expressly overrides the conflicting 
provision in the governing instrument. 19 

The bill amends s. 733.817(5)(h)5., F.S. to make it applicable to apportionment conflicts between all 
governing instruments (whether a conflicting instrument is a will or other instrument) and provides that 
the last executed governing instrument containing an effective tax apportionment clause controls to the 
extent of the conflict. If a will or trust is amended, the date of the amendment is the controlling date only 
if the amendment contains an express tax apportionment provision. Only tax apportionment provisions 
that would be effective but for the conflict create a conflict. The new rule applies to estates of 
decedents dying on or after July 1, 2015. 

18 Section 733.817(5)(h)3., F.S. 
19 Section 733.817(5)(h)5., F.S. 
STORAGE NAME: h0343 CJS.DOCX 
DATE: 2/8/2015 

PAGE: 6 



Construction 

Apportionment of Property Received By a Will or Trust as a Beneficiary 

Property passing under a will or trust is apportioned under the provisions of s. 733.817(5)(a) and (b), 
F. S. This is the case even if the will or trust received the property as beneficiary of an annuity, 
insurance policy, IRA, or similar interest, or as recipient of appointed property. This has caused some 
uncertainty among practitioners as the general"catch-all" apportionment provision in s. 733.817(5)(f), 
F.S. would seem to apply to these interests. However, the general provisions do not apply if the 
recipient is the estate or trust. The statute does not contemplate a double tax on what is essentially the 
same property. However, property subject to a power of appointment does not pass under the will 
simply because the power is exercised by the will unless the property passes to the estate.20 

The bill provides that the beneficiary of an annuity or insurance policy or the recipient of property 
subject to a power of appointment is the "recipient" as defined ins. 733.817(1)(i), F.S. If those interests 
are paid to the estate or a trust, and subsequently disposed of pursuant to the will or trust, the tax on 
them is to be apportioned in the manner provided for interests passing from the estate or the trust. 
Property passing under a general power of appointment to the decedent's creditors (or the creditors of 
the decedent's estate) benefits the estate and is treated as if it were appointed to the estate. 

Common Instrument Construction 

Under s. 733.817(5)(h)2., F.S., a decedent's will and revocable trust are construed together to 
apportion the tax as if all recipients of the estate and trust (other than the estate and trust themselves) 
were taking under one common instrument for the purpose of apportioning tax to recipients of residuary 
and non-residuary interests under the provisions regarding wills, trusts and protected homesteads. The 
statute applies to a will and revocable trust in which one does not pour into the other, an application 
that serves no purpose. 

For estates of decedents dying on or after July 1, 2015, the bill requires that that a decedent's will and 
revocable trust (or two revocable trusts, if applicable) must pour into one another for the common 
instrument construction to apply. The purpose of this provision is to determine which interests are in 
effect pre-residuary interests and which are residuary interests where a will or trust (or another trust) 
pours into the other so that the tax attributable to those interests may be apportioned accordingly. 

Updates in Response to Changes in Federal Tax Law 

In 2001, Congress passed the Economic Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2001. 21 That 
federal legislation phased out over a 5-year period, starting in 2002, the credit for state death taxes and 
effectively eliminated the Florida estate tax. The credit was replaced by a deduction for state death 
taxes. 22 This bill reflects the changes in federal law as follows: 

• The definition of "net tax" is amended to take into account the deduction for state death taxes 
that replaced the credit for state death taxes. Additionally, section 733.817(2)(c), F.S. was 
created to allocate the state death tax deduction to the interests producing the deduction for the 
purpose of determining the tax attributable to the interest. This is a curative revision intended to 
clarify existing law and applies retroactively to all proceedings in which the apportionment of 
taxes has not been finally determined or agreed for estates of decedents dying on or after July 
1, 2004. It does not affect any tax payable to the state of Florida. 

20 In re Estate of Wylie, 342 So.2d 996 (Fla. 4th DCA 1977); Smith v. Bank of Clearwater, 479 So.2d 755 (Fla. 2nd DCA 
1985). 
21 Pub. L. 107-16 (June 7, 2001); 115 Stat. 38. 
22 26 U.S.C. § 2058 
STORAGE NAME: h0343.CJS.DOCX PAGE: 7 
DATE· 2/8/2015 



• Provisions regarding the allocation of the reduction of the Florida estate tax for tax paid to 
others states are made contingent upon the reinstatement of the Florida estate tax. 

Other Changes in Bill 

• The bill defines the terms "generation skipping transfer tax" and "Section 2044 interest" as used 
in s. 733.817, F.S. The definitions are consistent with the terms as used in the Internal Revenue 
Code. 23 

• The bill provides that the generation-skipping transfer tax be apportioned in accordance with s. 
2603 of the Internal Revenue Code.24 Section 2603 provides that in the case of a taxable 
distribution, the tax is paid by the transferee. 

• The definition of the term "tax" as used ins. 733.817, F.S. is amended to explicitly exclude any 
additional estate tax that may be imposed by s. 2032A(c) or s. 2057(f) of the Internal Revenue 
Code to recapture tax savings related to family owned farms and businesses. The payment of 
the recaptured tax is imposed upon the applicable beneficiaries by ss. 2032(A) and 2057 of the 
Internal Revenue Code and is not a part of the "tax" apportioned by s. 733.817, F.S. 

• The bill fills a current gap in the law by providing that if the apportionment statute does not 
apportion part of the tax that was not effectively directed by a governing instrument, the court 
may assess liability for payment of the tax in the manner it finds equitable. 

• The bill provides that taxes may only be apportioned on such part of the elective share that 
would pass to others but for the elective share pursuant to s. 732.2075(2), F.S., to the extent 
those assets do not qualify for the marital deduction. It further provides that this provision 
applies only to interests passing by reason of the exercise or non-exercise of a general power of 
appointment. 

• Currently, the net tax attributable to property over which the decedent held a general power of 
appointment is calculated in the same manner as other property included in the measure of the 
tax. For estates of decedents dying on or after July 1, 2015, the bill authorizes the power holder 
to direct that the property subject to the general power of appointment bear the additional tax 
incurred by reason of the inclusion of the property subject to the general power of appointment 
in the power holder's gross estate. 

• The bill codifies existing law that a grant of permission or authority to pay or collect taxes is not 
a direction against statutory apportionment25 and that an effective direction for payment of tax 
on a type of interest in a manner different from that provided in s. 733.817, F.S. is not effective 
as an express direction for payment of tax on other types of interests. 26 

• The bill updates references regarding notice of a petition for an order of apportionment to 
provide that the personal representative must give notice "in the manner of formal notice" 
instead of simply "formal notice" as "formal notice" is not currently required by the Florida 
Probate Rules. 

23 See 26 USC§§ 2611-2612 and 26 USC§ 2044 
24 The generation-skipping transfer tax is based on the value of property received by the beneficiary, i.e., net of the estate 
tax charged against that property. Accordingly, the estate tax apportionment provisions must be determined first. Sect1on 
733.817, F.S., does not currently give any guidance on this matter. 
25 Nations Bank v. Brenner, 756 So. 2d 203 (Fla. 3d DCA 2000); In re Estate of McClaran, 811 So.2d 799 (Fla. 2d DCA 
2002). 
26 In re Estate of McClaran, 811 So2d. 799 (Fla. 2d DCA 2002). 
STORAGE NAME: h0343.CJS.DOCX PAGE: 8 
DATE· 2/8/2015 



Except as otherwise noted in this analysis, the bill applies retroactively to all estate proceedings 
pending on July 1, 2015, in which the apportionment of taxes has not been finally determined or 
agreed. 

B. SECTION DIRECTORY: 

Section 1 amends s. 733.817, F.S., relating to the apportionment of estate taxes. 

Section 2 provides for applicability and retroactive application. 

Section 3 provides an effective date of July 1, 2015. 

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT 

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT: 

1. Revenues: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on state revenues. 

2. Expenditures: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on state expenditures. 

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS: 

1. Revenues: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on local government revenues. 

2. Expenditures: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on local government expenditures. 

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR: 

The bill will have a direct economic impact on the beneficiaries of a Florida decedent's estate if the 
estate is subject to the federal estate tax or the estate tax of another state. The tax liability will be 
increased for some interests, while it will decrease or be eliminated for others. 

D. FISCAL COMMENTS: 

None. 

Ill. COMMENTS 

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES: 

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision: 

The bill does not appear to require counties or municipalities to take an action requiring the 
expenditure of funds, reduce the authority that counties or municipalities have to raise revenue in the 
aggregate, nor reduce the percentage of state tax shared with counties or municipalities. 

2. Other: 

The bill takes effect on July 1, 2015, and contains a provision applying portions of the bill 
retroactively to estate proceedings pending on or commenced after that date in which the 
apportionment of taxes has not been finally determined or agreed. 

STORAGE NAME. h0343.CJS DOCX 
DATE. 2/8/2015 

PAGE: 9 



Retroactive application of a statute is generally unconstitutional if the statute impairs vested rights, 
creates new obligations, or imposes new penalties. 27 

To determine whether a statute should be retroactively applied, courts apply two interrelated 
inquiries. First, courts determine whether there is clear evidence of legislative intent to apply the 
statute retrospectively. If so, then courts determine whether retroactive application is constitutionally 
permissible. 28 The first prong of the test appears to clearly be met by Section 2 of the bill, which 
contains an explicit statement of retroactivity. The second prong looks to see if a vested right is 
impaired. 

To be vested, a right must be more than a mere expectation based on an anticipation of the 
continuance of an existing law. 29 It must be an immediate, fixed right of present or future 
enjoyment. 30 

"Remedial statutes or statutes relating to remedies or modes of procedure, which do not create new 
or take away vested rights, but only operate in furtherance of the remedy or confirmation of rights 
already existing, do not come within the legal conception of a retrospective law, or the general rule 
against retrospective operation of statutes."31 

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY: 

The bill does not appear to create a need for rulemaking or rulemaking authority. 

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS: 

The reference to the year 2004 at line 643 should perhaps reference the year 2005. 

IV. AMENDMENTS/ COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES 

n/a 

27 
R.A.M. of South Florida, Inc. v. WCI Communities, Inc., 869 So.2d 1210, 1216 (Fla. 2nd DCA 2004). 

28 
Metropolitan Dade County v. Chase Federal Housing Corp., 737 So.2d 494, 499 (Fla. 1999) 

29 R.A.M. at 1218. 
3° Florida Hasp. Waterman, Inc. v. Buster, 948 So.2d 478, 490 (Fla. 2008). 
31 City of Lakeland v. Catinel/a, 129 So.2d 133 (Fla. 1961 ). 
STORAGE NAME. h0343 CJS.DOCX 
DATE. 2/8/2015 

PAGE: 10 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 343 2015 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

A bill to be entitled 

An act relating to estates; amending s. 733.817, F.S.; 

revising and providing definitions; revising 

provisions for allocation of the estate tax, 

apportionment of the net tax attributable to specified 

interests, and requirements for determining how 

specific interests are passed for purposes of 

determination of net tax; providing retroactive 

applicability; providing an effective date. 

11 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida: 

12 

13 Section 1. Section 733.817, Florida Statutes, is amended 

14 to read: 

15 733.817 Apportionment of estate taxes.-

16 (1) DEFINITIONS.-For purposes of this section: 

17 (a) "Fiduciary" means a person other than the personal 

18 representative in possession of property included in the measure 

19 of the tax who is liable to the applicable taxing authority for 

20 payment of the entire tax to the extent of the value of the 

21 property in possession. 

22 (b) "Generation-skipping transfer tax" means the 

23 generation-skipping transfer tax on direct skips at death and 

24 excludes the generation-skipping transfer tax on taxable 

25 distributions or taxable terminations. The terms "direct skip," 

26 "taxable distribution," and "taxable termination" have the same 

Page 1 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 343 2015 

27 meanings as provided in the Internal Revenue Code. 

28 ls:l_-ffH- "Governing instrument" means a will, trust 

29 agreement, or any other document that controls the transfer of 

30 property an asset on the occurrence of the event with respect to 

31 which the tax is being levied. 

32 lil_-te+ "Gross estate" means the gross estate, as 

33 determined by the Internal Revenue Code with respect to the 

34 federal estate tax and the Florida estate tax, and as that 

35 concept is otherwise determined by the estate, inheritance, or 

36 death tax laws of the particular state, country, or political 

37 subdivision whose tax is being apportioned. 

38 ~-te+ "Included in the measure of the tax" means that for 

39 each separate tax that an interest may incur, only interests 

40 included in the measure of that particular tax are considered. 

41 The term "included in the measure of the tax" does not include: 

42 1. Any interest, whether passing under the will or not, to 

43 the extent the interest is initially deductible from the gross 

44 estate, without regard to any subsequent reduction of the 

45 deduction by reason of the charge of any part of the applicable 

46 tax to the interest. If an election is required for 

47 deductibility, an interest is not "initially deductible" unless 

48 the election for deductibility is allowed. The term "included in 

4 9 the measure of the ta1r" does not include 

50 2. Interests or amounts that are not included in the gross 

51 estate but are included in the amount upon which the applicable 

52 tax is computed, such as adjusted taxable gifts pursuant to s. 

Page 2 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 343 2015 

53 2001 of the Internal Revenue Code vJith respeet to the federal 

54 estate taJr. If an eleetion is required for deduetibility, an 

55 interest is not "initially deduetible" unless the eleetion for 

56 deduetibility is allowed. 

57 3. Gift taxes included in the gross estate pursuant to s. 

58 2035 of the Internal Revenue Code and the portion of any 

59 intervivos transfer included in the gross estate pursuant to s. 

60 529 of the Internal Revenue Code, notwithstanding inclusion in 

61 the federal gross estate. 

62 J..!l-fe+ "Internal Revenue Code" means the Internal Revenue 

63 Code of 1986, as amended from time to time. 

64 l91_-f-f-t "Net tax" means the net tax payable to the 

65 particular state, country, or political subdivision whose tax is 

66 being apportioned, after taking into account all credits against 

67 the applicable tax except as provided in this section. With 

68 respect to the federal estate tax, "net tax" is determined after 

69 taking into account all credits against the tax except for the 

70 credit for foreign death taxes and except for the credit or 

71 deduction for state tax taxes imposed by states other than 

72 Florida. 

73 ill~ "Nonresiduary devise" means any devise that is not 

74 a residuary devise. 

75 ill-+fl+- "Nonresiduary interest" in connection with a trust 

76 means any interest in a trust which is not a residuary interest. 

77 J.il-f-i+ "Recipient" means, with respect to property or an 

78 interest in property included in the gross estate, an heir at 

Page 3 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 343 2015 

79 law in an intestate estate, devisee in a testate estate, 

80 beneficiary of a trust, beneficiary of a life ttR insurance 

81 policy, annuity, or other contractual right, surviving tenant, 

82 taker as a result of the exercise or in default of the exercise 

83 of a general power of appointment, person who receives or is to 

84 receive the property or an interest in the property, or person 

85 in possession of the property, other than a creditor. 

86 ill-+1+ "Residuary devise" has the meaning set forth in s. 

87 731.201. 

88 ill-f-k-+- "Residuary interest," in connection with a trust, 

89 means an interest in the assets of a trust which remain after 

90 provision for any distribution that is to be satisfied by 

91 reference to a specific property or type of property, fund, sum, 

92 

93 

94 

95 

96 

97 

98 

99 

100 

101 

or statutory amount. 

~-+-±+- "Revocable trust" means a trust as described in s. 

733.707(3). 

(n) "Section 2044 interest" means an interest included in 

the measure of the tax by reason of s. 2044 of the Internal 

Revenue Code. 

Js?l-ff:ft+- "State" means any state, territory, or possession 

of the United States, the District of Columbia, and the 

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. 

JE...L-tR+ "Tax" means any estate tax, inheritance tax, 

102 generation-skipping generation slEipping transfer tax, or other 

103 tax levied or assessed under the laws of this or any other 

104 state, the United States, any other country, or any political 

Page 4 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 

105 subdivision of the foregoing, as finally determined, which is 

106 imposed as a result of the death of the decedent, including, 

2015 

107 ·.dthout limitation, the taJ{ assessed pursuant to s. 4 980Pr of the 

108 Internal Revenue Code. The term also includes any interest and 

109 penalties imposed in addition to the tax. Unless the context 

110 indicates otherwise, the term "tax" means each separate tax. 

111 However, the term "tax" does not include any additional estate 

112 tax imposed by s. 2032A(c) or s. 2057(f) of the Internal Revenue 

113 Code or any corresponding state estate, inheritance, or death 

114 tax. The additional estate tax shall be apportioned as provided 

115 in s. 2032A or s. 2057 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

116 J...gl-te-1- "Temporary interest" means an interest in income or 

117 an estate for a specific period of time or for life or for some 

118 other period controlled by reference to extrinsic events, 

119 whether or not in trust. 

120 l£l-fl:rt- "Tentative Florida tax" with respect to any 

121 property means the net Florida estate tax that would have been 

122 attributable to that property if no tax were payable to any 

123 other state in respect of that property. 

124 M+tt- "Value" means the pecuniary worth of the interest 

125 involved as finally determined for purposes of the applicable 

126 tax after deducting any debt, expense, or other deduction 

127 chargeable to it for which a deduction was allowed in 

128 determining the amount of the applicable tax. A lien or other 

129 encumbrance is not regarded as chargeable to a particular 

130 interest to the extent that it will be paid from other 

Page 5 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 

131 interests. The value of an interest shall not be reduced by 

132 reason of the charge against it of any part of the tax, except 

133 as provided in paragraph (3) (a). 

134 (2) ALLOCATION OF TAX.-Except as otherwise effectively 

135 directed by the governing instrument, An interest in protected 

13 6 homestead shall be e}cempt from the apportionment of taxes. 

2015 

137 ~ the net tax attributable to the interests included in 

138 the measure of each tax shall be determined by the proportion 

139 that the value of each interest included in the measure of the 

140 tax bears to the total value of all interests included in the 

141 measure of the tax. Notwithstanding the foregoing: 

142 (a) The net tax attributable to Section 2044 interests 

143 included in the measure of the tax by reason of s. 2044 of the 

144 Internal Revenue Code shall be determined in the manner provided 

145 for the federal estate tax in s. 2207A of the Internal Revenue 

146 Code, and the amount so determined shall be deducted from the 

147 tax to determine the net tax attributable to all other remaining 

148 interests included in the measure of the tax. 

149 (b) The foreign tax credit allowed with respect to the 

150 federal estate tax shall be allocated among the recipients of 

151 interests finally charged with the payment of the foreign tax in 

152 reduction of any federal estate tax chargeable to the recipients 

153 of the foreign interests, whether or not any federal estate tax 

154 is attributable to the foreign interests. Any excess of the 

155 foreign tax credit shall be applied to reduce proportionately 

156 the net amount of federal estate tax chargeable to the remaining 

Page 6 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 343 

157 recipients of the interests included in the measure of the 

158 federal estate tax. 

159 (c) The reduction in the net tax attributable to the 

160 deduction for state death taxes allowed by s. 2058 of the 

2015 

161 Internal Revenue Code shall be allocated to the recipients of 

162 the interests that produced the deduction. For purposes of this 

163 paragraph, the reduction in the net tax shall be calculated in 

164 the manner provided for interests other than those described in 

165 paragraph (a) . 

166 ~+e+ The reduction in the Florida tax, if one is 

167 imposed, on the estate of a Florida resident for tax paid to 

168 other states shall be allocated as follows: 

169 1. If the net tax paid to another state is greater than or 

170 equal to the tentative Florida tax attributable to the property 

171 subject to tax in the other state, none of the Florida tax shall 

172 be attributable to that property. 

173 2. If the net tax paid to another state is less than the 

174 tentative Florida tax attributable to the property subject to 

175 tax in the other state, the net Florida tax attributable to the 

176 property subject to tax in the other state shall be the excess 

177 of the amount of the tentative Florida tax attributable to the 

178 property over the net tax payable to the other state with 

179 respect to the property. 

180 3. Any remaining net Florida tax shall be attributable to 

181 property included in the measure of the Florida tax exclusive of 

182 property subject to tax in other states. 

Page 7 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 343 

183 4. The net federa~ tax attributable to the property 

184 subject to tax in the other state shall be determined as if it 

185 were located in that tfie state. 

186 (e)+cit The net tax attributable to a temporary interest, 

2015 

187 if any, shall be regarded as attributable to the principal that 

188 supports the temporary interest. 

189 J..ll(4) (a) APPORTIONMENT OF TAX.-Except as otherwise 

190 effectively directed by the governing instrument, the net tax 

191 attributable to each interest shall be apportioned as follows: 

192 (a) Generation-skipping transfer tax.-Any federal or state 

193 generation-skipping transfer tax shall be apportioned in the 

194 manner provided in s. 2603 of the Internal Revenue Code after 

195 application of the remaining provisions of this subsection to 

196 taxes other than the generation-skipping transfer tax. 

197 (b) Section 2044 interests.-The net tax attributable to 

198 Section 2044 interests shall be apportioned among the recipients 

199 of the Section 2044 interests in the proportion that the value 

200 of each Section 2044 interest bears to the total of all Section 

201 2044 interests. The net tax apportioned by this paragraph to 

202 Section 2044 interests that pass in the manner described in 

203 paragraph (c) or paragraph (d) shall be apportioned to the 

204 Section 2044 interests in the manner described in those 

205 subsections before the apportionment of the net tax attributable 

206 to the other interests passing as provided in those paragraphs. 

207 The net tax attributable to the interests other than the Section 

208 2044 interests that pass in the manner described in paragraph 

Page 8 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 2015 

209 (c) or paragraph (d) shall be apportioned only to the other 

210 interests pursuant to those subsections if the Internal Revenue 

211 Code, including, but not limited to, so. 2032A(c) (5), 2206, 

212 2207, 2207A, 2207B, and 2603, applies to apportion federal taJf 

213 against recipients of certain interests, all net taxes, 

214 including taxes levied by the state attributable to each type of 

215 interest, shall be apportioned against the recipients of all 

216 

217 

218 

219 

220 

221 

222 

223 

224 

225 

226 

227 

228 

229 

interests of that type in the proportion that the value of each 

interest of that type included in the measure of the taJE bears 

to the total of all interests of that type included in the 

measure of the tmE. 

(b) The provisions of this subsection do not affect 

allocation of the reduction in the Florida taJf as provided in 

this section with respect to estates of Florida residents which 

are also subject to tax in other states. 

( 5) EJwept as provided above or as othen1ioe directed by 

the governing instrument, the net taJE attributable to each 

interest shall be apportioned as follovw: 

l£l+rrt Wills.-For property passing under the decedent's 

will, in the following order of priority: 

1. The net tax attributable to nonresiduary devises shall 

230 be charged to and paid from the residuary estate whether or not 

231 all interests in the residuary estate are included in the 

232 measure of the tax. If the residuary estate is insufficient to 

233 pay the net tax attributable to all nonresiduary devises, the 

234 balance of the net tax attributable to nonresiduary devises 

Page 9 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 2015 

235 shall be apportioned among the recipients of the nonresiduary 

236 devises in the proportion that the value of each nonresiduary 

237 devise included in the measure of the tax bears to the total of 

238 all nonresiduary devises included in the measure of the tax. 

239 2. The net tax attributable to residuary devises shall be 

240 apportioned among the recipients of the residuary devises 

241 included in the measure of tax in the proportion that the value 

242 of each residuary devise included in the measure of the tax 

243 bears to the total of all residuary devises included in the 

244 measure of the tax. If the residuary estate is insufficient to 

245 pay the net tax attributable to all residuary devises, the 

246 balance of the net tax attributable to residuary devises shall 

247 be apportioned among the recipients of the nonresiduary devises 

248 in the proportion that the value of each nonresiduary devise 

249 included in the measure of the tax bears to the total of all 

250 nonresiduary devises included in the measure of the tax. 

251 JQl+B+ Trusts.-For property passing under the terms of any 

252 trust other than a trust created in the decedent's will, in the 

253 following order of priority: 

254 1. The net tax attributable to nonresiduary interests of 

255 the trust shall be charged to and paid from the residuary 

256 portion of the trust, whether or not all interests in the 

257 residuary portion are included in the measure of the tax. If the 

258 residuary portion of the trust is insufficient to pay the net 

259 tax attributable to all nonresiduary interests, the balance of 

260 the net tax attributable to nonresiduary interests shall be 

Page 10 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 

261 apportioned among the recipients of the nonresiduary interests 

262 in the proportion that the value of each nonresiduary interest 

263 included in the measure of the tax bears to the total of all 

264 nonresiduary interests included in the measure of the tax. 

2015 

265 2. The net tax attributable to residuary interests of the 

266 trust shall be apportioned among the recipients of the residuary 

267 interests of the trust included in the measure of the tax in the 

268 proportion that the value of each residuary interest included in 

269 the measure of the tax bears to the total of all residuary 

270 interests of the trust included in the measure of the tax. If 

271 the residuary portion is insufficient to pay the net tax 

272 attributable to all residuary interests, the balance of the net 

273 tax attributable to residuary interests shall be apportioned 

274 among the recipients of the nonresiduary interests in the 

275 proportion that the value of each nonresiduary interest included 

276 in the measure of the tax bears to the total of all nonresiduary 

277 interests included in the measure of the tax. 

278 

279 Except as provided in paragraph (g), this paragraph applies 

280 separately for each trust. 

281 ~+et Protected homestead, exempt property, and family 

282 allowance.-

283 1. The net tax attributable to an interest in protected 

284 homestead, exempt property, and the family allowance as 

285 determined under s. 732.403 shall be apportioned against the 

286 recipients of other interests in the estate or passing under any 

Page 11 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 2015 

287 revocable trust in the following order of priority: 

288 a.±. Class I: Recipients of interests passing by intestacy 

289 not disposed of by the decedent's will or revocable trust that 

290 are included in the measure of the federal estate tax. 

291 b.~ Class II: Recipients of residuary devises~ ana 
292 residuary interests, and pretermitted shares pursuant to ss. 

293 732.301 and 732.302 that are included in the measure of the 

294 federal estate tax. 

295 c.~ Class III: Recipients of nonresiduary devises and 

296 nonresiduary interests that are included in the measure of the 

297 federal estate tax. 

298 2. Any~ net tax apportioned to a class, if any, 

299 pursuant to this paragraph shall be apportioned among each 

300 recipient the recipients in the class in the proportion that the 

301 value of the interest of each bears to the total value of all 

302 interests included in that class. Tax may not be apportioned 

303 under this paragraph to the portion of any interest applied in 

304 satisfaction of the elective share whether or not included in 

305 the measure of the tax. For purposes of this paragraph, if the 

306 interests described ins. 732.2075(1) exceed the amount of the 

307 elective share, the elective share shall be treated as satisfied 

308 first from interests other than those described in classes I, 

309 II, and III and, to the extent those interests are insufficient 

310 to satisfy the elective share, from the interests passing to or 

311 for the benefit of the surviving spouse described in classes I, 

312 II, and III, beginning with those described in class I, until 

Page 12 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F REPRESENTATIVES 

HB 343 

313 the elective share is satisfied. This paragraph has priority 

314 over paragraphs (a) and (h). 

2015 

315 3. The balance of the net tax attributable to any interest 

316 in protected homestead, exempt property, and the family 

317 allowance as determined under s. 732.403 not apportioned under 

318 this paragraph shall be apportioned to the recipients of those 

319 interests included in the measure of the tax in the proportion 

320 that the value of each bears to the total value of those 

321 interests included in the measure of the tax. 

(f) Construction.-For purposes of this subsection: 322 

323 

324 

325 

326 

327 

328 

1. If the decedent's estate is the beneficiary of a life 

insurance policy, annuity, or contractual right included in the 

decedent's gross estate or is the taker as a result of the 

exercise or default in exercise of a general .f20Wer of 

a.12,eointment held by the decedent, that interest shall be 

regarded as ,eassing under the terms of the decedent's will for 

329 the purposes of paragraph (c) or by intestacy if not disposed of 

330 by will. Additionally, any interest included in the measure of 

331 the tax by reason of s. 2041 of the Internal Revenue Code 

332 ,eassing to the decedent's creditors or the creditors of the 

333 decedent's estate shall be regarded as passing to the decedent's 

334 estate for purposes of this subparagraph. 

335 2. If a trust is the beneficiary of a life insurance 

336 policy, annuity, or contractual right included in the decedent's 

337 gross estate or is the taker as a result of the exercise or 

338 default in exercise of a general power of appointment held by 

Page 13 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

339 

340 

341 

342 

343 

344 

345 

346 

347 

348 

349 

350 

351 

352 

353 

354 

355 

356 

357 

358 

359 

HB 343 

the decedent, that interest shall be regarded as passing under 

the trust for purposes of paragraph (d). 

2015 

jgl+at Common instrument construction.-In the application 

of this subsection, paragraphs (b)- (f) (a), (b), and (c) shall 

be applied to apportion the net tax to the recipients under 

certain governing instruments of the estate and the recipients 

of the decedent's revocable trust as if all recipients under 

those instruments, other than the estate or revocable trust 

trusts themselves, were taking under a common instrument. This 

construction applies to: 

1. The decedent's will and revocable trust if either the 

estate or the revocable trust is a beneficiary of the other. 

2. The decedent's revocable trust and any other revocable 

trust of the decedent if the revocable trust is a beneficiary of 

the other trust. 

(e) The net taH imposed under s. 4980A of the Internal 

Revenue Code shall be apportioned among the recipients of the 

interests included in the measure of that ta2f in the proportion 

that the value of the interest of each bears to the total value 

of all interests included in the measure of that tmr. 

Jbl~ Other interests.-The net tax that is not 

360 apportioned to interests under paragraphs (b)- (g) (a), (b), and 

361 +et, including, but not limited to, the net tax attributable to 

362 interests passing by intestacy, interests applied in 

363 satisfaction of the elective share pursuant to s. 732.2075(2), 

364 interests passing by reason of the exercise or nonexercise of a 

Page 14 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 2015 

365 general power of appointment, jointly held interests passing by 

366 survivorship, life insurance, properties in which the decedent 

367 held a reversionary or revocable interest, and annuities and 

368 contractual rights, shall be apportioned among the recipients of 

369 the remaining interests that are included in the measure of the 

370 tax in the proportion that the value of each such interest bears 

371 to the total value of all the remaining interests included in 

372 the measure of the tax. 

373 Jll~ Liability for payment of interest or penalties.-If 

374 the court finds that it is inequitable to apportion interest, 

375 penalties, or both7 in the manner provided in paragraphs (a)-(h) 

376 (a) (f), the court may assess liability for the payment thereof 

377 in the manner it finds equitable. 

378 (j) Liability for payment of tax.-If the court finds that 

379 this section does not apportion any tax that was not effectively 

380 directed by the governing instrument, the court may assess 

381 liability for the payment of the tax in the manner it finds 

382 equitable. 

383 (4) DIRECTION AGAINST APPORTIONMENT.-

384 (a) Except as provided in this subsection, a governing 

385 instrument may not direct that taxes be paid from property other 

386 than that passing under the governing instrument. 

387 iQl(h)l. For To be effective as a direction in a governing 

388 instrument to be effective to direct payment of taxes 

389 attributable to property passing under the governing instrument 

390 for payment of taJf in a manner different from that provided in 

Page 15 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 2015 

391 this section, the direction must be express governing instrument 

392 FRust direct that the tan be paid from assets that pass pursuant 

3 93 to that governing instrument, eJwept as provided in this 

394 section. 

395 2. If the decedent's ·,Jill provides that the taJC shall be 

396 apportioned as provided in the decedent's revocable trust by 

397 specific reference to the trust, the direction in the revocable 

398 trust shall be deemed to be a direction contained in the v;ill 

399 and shall control vvith respect to payment of tmws from assets 

4 00 passing under both the ·,Jill and the revocable trust. 

401 3. A direction in the decedent's vJill to pay taJC from the 

402 decedent's revocable trust is effective if a contrary direction 

403 is not contained in the trust agreement. 

404 i£l~ For a direction in a governing instrument to be 

405 effective to direct payment of taxes attributable to property 

406 not passing under the governing instrument from property passing 

407 under the governing instrument, the governing instrument must 

408 expressly direct refer to this section, or eJcpressly indicate 

409 that the property passing under the governing instrument is to 

410 bear the burden of taxation for property not passing under the 

411 governing instrument. Except as provided in paragraph (d), a 

412 direction in the governing instrument to the effect that all 

413 taxes are to be paid from property passing under the governing 

414 instrument whether attributable to property passing under the 

415 governing instrument or otherwise shall be effective to direct 

416 the payment from property passing under the governing instrument 

Page 16 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 

417 of taxes attributable to property not passing under the 

418 governing instrument. 

2015 

419 (d) In addition to satisfying the other provisions of this 

4 2 0 subsection : 

421 1.a. For a direction in the decedent's will or revocable 

422 trust to be effective to waive the right of recovery provided in 

423 s. 2207A of the Internal Revenue Code for tax imposed by reason 

424 of s. 2044 of the Internal Revenue Code and any other tax 

425 imposed by Florida based on that provision of the Internal 

426 Revenue Code, the direction must expressly waive the right of 

427 recovery. An express direction that property passing under the 

428 will or revocable trust bear the tax imposed by s. 2044 of the 

429 Internal Revenue Code is an express waiver of the right of 

430 recovery provided in s. 2207A of the Internal Revenue Code. A 

431 reference to "qualified terminable interest property" or "QTIP" 

432 or property in which the decedent had a "qualifying income 

433 interest for life" is deemed to be a reference to property upon 

434 which tax is imposed by s. 2044 of the Internal Revenue Code and 

435 which is subject to the right of recovery provided in s. 2207A 

436 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

437 b. If property is included in the gross estate pursuant to 

438 both ss. 2044 and 2041 of the Internal Revenue Code, the 

439 property is deemed to be included under s. 2044 but not s. 2041 

440 for purposes of allocation and apportionment of the tax. 

441 2. For a direction in the decedent's will or revocable 

442 trust to be effective to waive the right of recovery provided in 

Page 17 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 2015 

443 s. 22078 of the Internal Revenue Code for tax imposed by reason 

444 of s. 2036 of the Internal Revenue Code and any other tax 

445 imposed by Florida based on that provision of the Internal 

446 Revenue Code, the direction must expressly waive the right of 

447 recovery. An express direction that property passing under the 

448 will or revocable trust bear the tax imposed by s. 2036 of the 

449 Internal Revenue Code is deemed to be an express waiver of the 

450 right of recovery provided in s. 22078. If property is included 

451 in the gross estate pursuant to both ss. 2038 and 2036 of the 

452 Internal Revenue Code, the property is deemed to be included 

453 under s. 2038 but not s. 2036 for purposes of allocation and 

454 apportionment of the tax, and there is no right of recovery 

455 under s. 22078 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

456 3. A general statement in the decedent's will or revocable 

457 trust waiving all rights of reimbursement or recovery under the 

458 Internal Revenue Code is not an express waiver of the rights of 

459 recovery provided in s. 2207A or s. 22078 of the Internal 

460 Revenue Code. 

461 4. For a direction in a governing instrument to be 

462 effective to direct the payment of the generation-skipping 

463 transfer tax in a manner other than as provided in s. 2603 of 

464 the Internal Revenue Code and any other tax imposed by Florida 

465 based on that provision of the Internal Revenue Code, the 

466 direction must specifically reference the tax imposed by s. 2601 

467 of the Internal Revenue Code. A reference to the "generation-

4 68 skipping transfer tax" or s. 2 603 of the Internal Revenue Code 

Page 18 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 

469 is deemed to be a reference to property upon which tax is 

470 imposed by reason of s. 2601 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

2015 

471 (e) If the decedent expressly directs by will, the net tax 

472 attributable to property over which the decedent held a general 

473 power of appointment may be determined in a manner different 

474 from that provided in subsection (2); however, the net tax 

475 attributable to that property may not exceed the difference 

476 between the total net tax determined pursuant to subsection (2) 

477 without regard to this paragraph and the total net tax that 

478 would have been payable if the value of the property subject to 

479 such power of appointment had not been included in the 

480 decedent's gross estate. If tax is attributable to one or more 

481 Section 2044 interests pursuant to subsection (2), the net tax 

482 attributable to the Section 2044 interests shall be calculated 

483 before the application of this paragraph unless the decedent 

484 expressly directs otherwise by will. 

485 (f) If the decedent's will expressly provides that the tax 

486 is to be apportioned as provided in the decedent's revocable 

487 trust by specific reference to the revocable trust, an express 

488 direction in the revocable trust is deemed to be a direction 

489 contained in the will as well as the revocable trust. 

4 90 (g) An express direction in the decedent's will to pay tax 

491 from the decedent's revocable trust by specific reference to the 

492 revocable trust is effective unless a contrary express direction 

493 is contained in the revocable trust. 

494 (h) If governing instruments contain effective directions 

Page 19 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 343 2015 

495 that conflict as to payment of taxes, the most recently executed 

496 tax apportionment provision controls to the extent of the 

497 conflict. For the purpose of this subsection, if a will or other 

498 governing instrument is amended, the date of the codicil to the 

499 will or amendment to the governing instrument is regarded as the 

500 date of the will or other governing instrument only if the 

501 codicil or amendment contains an express tax apportionment 

502 provision or an express modification of the tax apportionment 

503 provision. A general statement ratifying or republishing all 

504 provisions not otherwise amended does not meet this condition. 

505 If the decedent's will and another governing instrument were 

506 executed on the same date, the will is deemed to be executed 

507 after the other governing instrument. The earlier conflicting 

508 governing instrument shall control as to any tax remaining 

509 unpaid after the application of the later conflicting governing 

510 instrument. 

511 (i) A grant of permission or authority in a governing 

512 instrument to request payment of tax from property passing under 

513 another governing instrument is not a direction apportioning the 

514 tax to the property passing under the other governing 

515 instrument. A grant of permission or authority in a governing 

516 instrument to pay tax attributable to property not passing under 

517 the governing instrument is not a direction apportioning the tax 

518 to property passing under the governing instrument. 

519 (j) This section applies to any tax remaining to be paid 

520 after the application of any effective express directions. An 

Page 20 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 

521 effective express direction for the payment of tax on certain 

522 interests in a manner different from that provided in this 

2015 

523 section is not effective as an express direction for payment of 

524 tax on other interests included in the measure of the tax. 

525 5. If there is a conflict as to payment of taxes betHeen 

526 the decedent's Hill and the governing instrument, the decedent's 

527 vJill controls, except as follmvs: 

528 a. The governing instrument shall be given effect Hith 

529 respect to any tax remaining unpaid after the application of the 

530 decedent's r,;rill. 

531 b. A direction in a governing instrument to pay the taJc 

532 attributable to assets that pass pursuant to the governing 

533 instrument from assets that pass pursuant to that governing 

534 instrument shall be effective notwithstanding any conflict with 

535 the decedent's will, unless the taJc provision in the decedent's 

536 will eJcpressly overrides the conflicting provision in the 

537 governing instrument. 

538 ~~ TRANSFER OF PROPERTY.-The personal representative 

539 or fiduciary shall not be required to transfer to a recipient 

540 any property reasonably anticipated to be necessary for the 

541 payment of taxes. Further, the personal representative or 

542 fiduciary shall not be required to transfer any property to the 

543 recipient until the amount of the tax due from the recipient is 

544 paid by the recipient. If property is transferred before final 

545 apportionment of the tax, the recipient shall provide a bond or 

546 other security for his or her apportioned liability in the 

Page 21 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 

547 amount and form prescribed by the personal representative or 

548 fiduciary. 

549 J2l++t ORDER OF APPORTIONMENT.-

550 (a) The personal representative may petition at any time 

551 for an order of apportionment. If no administration has been 

2015 

552 commenced at any time after 90 days from the decedent's death, 

553 any fiduciary may petition for an order of apportionment in the 

554 court in which venue would be proper for administration of the 

555 decedent's estate. Formal Notice of the petition for an order of 

556 apportionment must be served on shall be given to all interested 

557 persons in the same manner as required for service of formal 

558 notice. At any time after 6 months from the decedent's death, 

559 any recipient may petition the court for an order of 

560 apportionment. 

561 (b) The court shall determine all issues concerning 

562 apportionment. If the tax to be apportioned has not been finally 

563 determined, the court shall determine the probable tax due or to 

564 become due from all interested persons, apportion the probable 

565 tax, and retain jurisdiction over the parties and issues to 

566 modify the order of apportionment as appropriate until after the 

567 tax is finally determined. 

568 J2l+&t DEFICIENCY.-

569 (a) If the personal representative or fiduciary does not 

570 have possession of sufficient property otherwise distributable 

571 to the recipient to pay the tax apportioned to the recipient, 

572 whether under this section, the Internal Revenue Code, or the 

Page 22 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 2015 

573 governing instrument, if applicable, the personal representative 

574 or fiduciary shall recover the deficiency in tax so apportioned 

57 5 to the recipient: 

576 1. From the fiduciary in possession of the property to 

577 which the tax is apportioned, if any; and 

578 2. To the extent of any deficiency in collection from the 

579 fiduciary, or to the extent collection from the fiduciary is 

580 excused pursuant to subsection ~ +9+ and in all other cases, 

581 from the recipient of the property to which the tax is 

582 apportioned, unless relieved of this duty as provided in 

583 subsection ~ +9+. 

584 (b) In any action to recover the tax apportioned, the 

585 order of apportionment shall be prima facie correct. 

586 (c) In any action for the enforcement of an order of 

587 apportionment, the court shall award taxable costs as in 

588 chancery actions, including reasonable attorney attorney's fees, 

589 and may award penalties and interest on the unpaid tax in 

590 accordance with equitable principles. 

591 (d) This subsection does shall not authorize the recovery 

592 of any tax from any company issuing life insurance included in 

593 the gross estate, or from any bank, trust company, savings and 

594 loan association, or similar institution with respect to any 

595 account in the name of the decedent and any other person which 

596 passed by operation of law on the decedent's death. 

597 

598 

jil+9+ RELIEF FROM DUTY.-

(a) A personal representative or fiduciary who has the 

Page 23 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 2015 

599 duty under this section of collecting the apportioned tax from 

600 recipients may be relieved of the duty to collect the tax by an 

601 order of the court finding: 

602 1. That the estimated court costs and attorney attorney's 

603 fees in collecting the apportioned tax from a person against 

604 whom the tax has been apportioned will approximate or exceed the 

605 amount of the recovery; 

606 2. That the person against whom the tax has been 

607 apportioned is a resident of a foreign country other than Canada 

608 and refuses to pay the apportioned tax on demand; or 

609 3. That it is impracticable to enforce contribution of the 

610 apportioned tax against a person against whom the tax has been 

611 apportioned in view of the improbability of obtaining a judgment 

612 or the improbability of collection under any judgment that might 

613 be obtained, or otherwise. 

614 (b) A personal representative or fiduciary shall not be 

615 liable for failure to attempt to enforce collection if the 

616 personal representative or fiduciary reasonably believes it 

617 would have been economically impracticable. 

618 J2l+±B+ UNCOLLECTED TAX.-Any apportioned tax that is not 

619 collected shall be reapportioned in accordance with this section 

620 as if the portion of the property to which the uncollected tax 

621 had been apportioned had been exempt. 

622 J.l...Ql+±-±+- CONTRIBUTION. Hothing in This section does not 

623 shall limit the right of any person who has paid more than the 

624 amount of the tax apportionable to that person, calculated as if 

Page 24 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 2015 

625 all apportioned amounts would be collected, to obtain 

626 contribution from those who have not paid the full amount of the 

627 tax apportionable to them, calculated as if all apportioned 

628 amounts would be collected, and that right is hereby conferred. 

629 In any action to enforce contribution, the court shall award 

630 taxable costs as in chancery actions, including reasonable 

631 attorney attorney's fees. 

632 Jlll+±&t FOREIGN TAX.-Nothing herein contained shall be 

633 construed to require the personal representative or fiduciary to 

634 pay any tax levied or assessed by any foreign country, unless 

635 specific directions to that effect are contained in the will or 

636 other instrument under which the personal representative or 

637 fiduciary is acting. 

638 Section 2. (1) The amendments made by this act to s. 

639 733.817(1) (g) and (2) (c), Florida Statutes, are intended to 

640 clarify existing law and apply retroactively to all proceedings 

641 pending or commenced after July 1, 2015, in which the 

642 apportionment of taxes has not been finally determined or agreed 

643 for estates of decedents dying on or after January 1, 2004. 

644 (2) The amendments made by this act to s. 733.817(1) (e)3., 

645 (3) (e), (3) (g), (4) (b), (4) (c), (4) (d) l.b., (4) (e), (4) (h), and 

646 (6), Florida Statutes, apply to the estates of decedents dying 

647 on or after July 1, 2015. 

648 (3) Except as otherwise provided in this section, the 

649 amendments made by this act to s. 733.817, Florida Statutes, are 

650 intended to clarify existing law and apply retroactively to all 

Page 25 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0343-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 343 

651 proceedings pending on or after July 1, 2015, in which the 

652 apportionment of taxes has not been finally determined or 

653 agreed. 

654 Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 2015. 

Page 26 of 26 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

2015 

hb0343-00 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 343 (2015) 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECTION 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WITHDRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Civil Justice Subcommittee 

2 Representative Moraitis offered the following: 

3 

4 Amendment (with title amendment) 

5 Between lines 12 and 13, insert: 

6 Section 1. Paragraph (c) of subsection (2) and subsection 

7 (3) of section 733.212, Florida Statutes, is amended to read: 

8 

9 

10 

733.212 Notice of administration; filing of objections.

(2) The notice shall state: 

(c) That any interested person on whom a copy of the 

11 notice of administration is served must file on or before the 

12 date that is 3 months after the date of service of a copy of the 

13 notice of administration on that person any objection that 

14 challenges the validity of the will, the qualifications of the 

15 personal representative, the venue, er the jurisdiction of the 

16 court, or as otherwise provided by subsection (3). Except for 

17 estoppel based solely on a misstatement by the personal 

037403 - h0343-line 12.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:01:16 PM 

Page 1 of 7 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 343 (2015) 

18 representative as to the time period within which an objection 

19 must be filed, the 3 month time period may not be extended for 

20 any reason, including affirmative representation, failure to 

21 disclose information, or misconduct by the personal 

22 representative or any other person. Unless sooner barred by 

23 subsection (3), all objections to the validity of a will, or the 

24 venue or jurisdiction of the court must be filed not later than 

25 the earlier of entry of an order of final discharge of the 

26 personal representative or one year after service of notice of 

27 administration. 

28 (3) Any interested person on whom a copy of the notice of 

29 administration is served must object to the validity of the 

30 will, the qualifications of the personal representative, the 

31 venue, or the jurisdiction of the court by filing a petition or 

32 other pleading requesting relief in accordance with the Florida 

33 Probate Rules on or before the date that is 3 months after the 

34 date of service of a copy of the notice of administration on the 

35 objecting person, or those objections are forever barred. Except 

36 for estoppel based solely on a misstatement by the personal 

37 representative as to the time period within which an objection 

38 must be filed, the 3 month time period may not be extended for 

39 any reason, including affirmative representation, failure to 

40 disclose information, or misconduct by the personal 

41 representative or any other person. Unless sooner barred under 

42 this subsection, all objections to the validity of a will, or 

43 the venue or jurisdiction of the court must be filed not later 

037403 - h0343-line 12.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:01:16 PM 

Page 2 of 7 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 343 (2015) 

44 than the earlier of one year after service of notice of 

45 administration or entry of an order of final discharge of the 

46 personal representative. 

47 Section 2. Section 733.2123, Florida Statutes, is amended 

48 to read: 

49 733.2123 Adjudication before issuance of letters.-A 

50 petitioner may serve formal notice of the petition for 

51 administration on interested persons. A copy of the will offered 

52 for probate must be attached to the notice. A person who is 

53 served with such notice before the issuance of letters or who 

54 has waived notice may not challenge the validity of the will, 

55 testacy of the decedent, qualifications of the personal 

56 representative, venue, or jurisdiction of the court, except in 

57 the proceedings before issuance of letters. 

58 Section 3. Effective upon this act becoming a law, section 

59 733.3101, Florida Statutes, is amended to read: 

60 733.3101 Personal representative not qualified.-

61 (1) A personal representative shall resign immediately 

62 when the personal representative knows that he or she was not 

63 qualified to act at the time of appointment. 

64 Jll Any time a personal representative who was qualified 

65 to act at the time of appointment knows or should have known 

66 that he or she would not be qualified for appointment if 

67 application for appointment were then made, the personal 

68 representative shall promptly file and serve a notice setting 

69 forth the reasons. The notice must state that any interested 

037403 - h0343-line 12.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:01:16 PM 

Page 3 of 7 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 343 (2015) 

70 person may petition to remove the personal representative. An 

71 interested person on whom a copy of the notice is served may 

72 file a petition within 30 days after service of the notice 

73 requesting the personal representative's removal. 

74 (3) A personal representative who fails to comply with 

75 this section shall be personally liable for costs, including 

76 attorney's fees, incurred in any removal proceeding, if the 

77 personal representative is removed. The liability shall extend 

78 to any personal representative who does not know but should have 

79 known of the facts that would otherwise require the personal 

80 representative to resign under subsection (1) or file and serve 

81 notice under subsection (2). This liability shall be cumulative 

82 to any other provided by law. 

83 (4) As used in this section, the term "qualified" means 

84 qualified under ss. 733.302-733.305. 

85 Section 4. Effective upon this act becoming a law, section 

86 733.504, Florida Statutes, is amended to read: 

87 733.504 Removal of personal representative; causes for 

88 removal.-

89 ( 1) A personal representative shall be removed and the 

90 letters revoked if he or she was not qualified to act at the 

91 time of appointment. 

92 (2) A personal representative may be removed and the 

93 letters revoked for any of the following causes, and the removal 

94 shall be in addition to any penalties prescribed by law: 

95 (a)+±+ Adjudication that the personal representative is 

037403 - h0343-line 12.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:01:16 PM 

Page 4 of 7 



1111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 343 (2015) 
Amendment No. 1 

96 incapacitated. 

97 (b)~ Physical or mental incapacity rendering the 

98 personal representative incapable of the discharge of his or her 

99 duties. 

100 (c)+3t Failure to comply with any order of the court, 

101 unless the order has been superseded on appeal. 

102 (d)+4+ Failure to account for the sale of property or to 

103 produce and exhibit the assets of the estate when so required. 

104 (e)+§+ Wasting or maladministration of the estate. 

105 (f)+6+ Failure to give bond or security for any purpose. 

106 lgl++t Conviction of a felony. 

107 (h)+&t Insolvency of, or the appointment of a receiver or 

108 liquidator for, any corporate personal representative. 

109 (i)~ Holding or acquiring conflicting or adverse 

110 interests against the estate that will or may interfere with the 

111 administration of the estate as a whole. This cause of removal 

112 shall not apply to the surviving spouse because of the exercise 

113 of the right to the elective share, family allowance, or 

114 exemptions, as provided elsewhere in this code. 

115 Jil+±G+ Revocation of the probate of the decedent's will 

116 that authorized or designated the appointment of the personal 

117 representative. 

118 (k)+±±} Removal of domicile from Florida, if domicile was 

119 a requirement of initial appointment. 

120 (1)~ The personal representative was qualified to act 

121 at the time of appointment but would not now be entitled to 

037403 - h0343-line 12.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:01:16 PM 

Page 5 of 7 



1111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 343 (2015) 
Amendment No. 1 

122 appointment. 

123 

124 

125 

12 6 

127 

128 

12 9 

130 

131 

132 

133 

(3) Removal pursuant to this section shall be in addition 

to any penalties prescribed by law. 

Section 5. (1) The amendments made by this act to s. 

733.212, Florida Statutes, apply to proceedings filed on or 

after July 1, 2015. 

(2) The amendments made by this to s. 733.3101 and s. 

733.504, Florida Statutes, apply to proceedings pending on the 

date this act becomes a law. 

T I T L E A M E N D M E N T 

134 Remove line 2 and insert: 

135 An act relating to estates; amending s. 733.212, F.S.; revising 

136 the content of a notice of administration; providing that the 

137 time to file certain objections to a notice of administration 

138 may not be extended; providing an exception; specifying the time 

139 that all objections to the validity of the will, venue, or 

140 jurisdiction of the court must be filed; amending s. 733.2123, 

141 F.S.; requiring that a copy of the will be attached to a formal 

142 notice of the petition for administration; amending s. 733.3101, 

143 F.S.; requiring a personal representative to resign under 

144 certain circumstances; requiring a personal representative to 

145 provide notice if unqualified; specifying contents of notice; 

146 authorizing interested persons to petition for the removal of 

147 unqualified personal representative; defining the term 

037403 - h0343-line 12.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:01:16 PM 

Page 6 of 7 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 343 (2015) 

148 "qualified"; amending s. 733.504, F.S.; requiring that a 

149 personal representative who was unqualified at the time of 

150 appointment be removed and have his or her letters of 

151 administration revoked; providing that a previously qualified 

152 personal represented may be removed if he or she is no longer 

153 entitled to appointment; providing for applicability; amending 

154 s. 733.817, F.S.; 

037403 - h0343-line 12.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:01:16 PM 

Page 7 of 7 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 2 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 343 (2015) 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECTION 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WITHDRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Civil Justice Subcommittee 

2 Representative Moraitis offered the following: 

3 

4 Amendment 

5 Remove lines 638-647 and insert: 

6 Section 2. (1) Section 733.817(1) (g) and (2) (c), Florida 

7 Statutes, are intended to clarify existing law and apply 

8 retroactively to all proceedings pending or commenced after July 

9 1, 2015, in which the apportionment of taxes has not been 

10 finally determined or agreed for estates of decedents dying on 

11 or after January 1, 2005. 

12 (2) Section 733.817(1) (e)3., (3) (e), (3) (g), (4) (b), 

13 (4) (c), (4) (d) l.b., (4) (e), (4) (h), and (6), Florida Statutes, 

14 apply to the estates of decedents dying on or after July 1, 

15 2015. 

116099 - h0343-line 638.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:01:51 PM 

Page 1 of 1 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 3 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 343 (2015) 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECTION 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WITHDRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Civil Justice Subcommittee 

2 Representative Moraitis offered the following: 

3 

4 

5 

6 

Amendment (with title amendment) 

Between lines 653 and 654, insert: 

Section 3. Subsection (4) of section 733.106, Florida 

7 Statutes, is amended to read: 

8 733.106 Costs and attorney's fees.-

9 (4)~ When costs and attorney's fees are to be paid from 

10 the estate pursuant to subsections (1)-(3), s. 733.6171(4), s. 

11 736.1005, or s. 736.1006, the court, in its discretion, may 

12 direct from what part of the estate they shall be paid. If the 

13 court directs an assessment against a person's part of the 

14 estate and that part is insufficient to fully pay the 

15 assessment, the court may direct payment from the person's part 

16 of a trust, if any, if a pourover will is involved and the 

17 matter is interrelated with the trust. All or any part of costs 

281593 - h0343-line 653.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:02:32 PM 

Page 1 of 5 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 3 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 343 (2015) 

18 and attorney's fees to be paid from the estate may be assessed 

19 against one or more person's part of the estate in such 

20 proportions as the court finds to be just and proper. 

21 (b) The court in the exercise of its discretion may 

22 consider the following factors: 

23 1. The relative impact of an assessment on the estimated 

24 value of each person's part of the estate; 

25 2 . The amount of costs and attorney's fees to be assessed 

26 against a person's part of the estate; 

27 3. The extent to which a person whose part of the estate 

28 is to be assessed, individually or through counsel, actively 

2 9 participated in the proceeding; 

30 4. The potential benefit or detriment to a person's part 

31 of the estate expected from the outcome of the proceeding; 

32 5. The relative strength or weakness of the merits of the 

33 claims, defenses, or objections, if any, asserted by a person 

34 whose part of the estate is to be assessed; 

35 6. Whether a person whose part of the estate is to be 

36 assessed was a prevailing party with respect to one or more 

37 claims, defenses, or objections; 

38 7. Whether a person whose part of the estate is to be 

39 assessed unjustly caused an increase in the amount of attorney's 

40 fees and costs incurred by the personal representative or other 

41 interested persons in connection with the proceeding; and 

42 8. Any other relevant fact, circumstance or equity. 

281593 - h0343-line 653.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:02:32 PM 

Page 2 of 5 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 3 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 343 (2015) 

43 (c) The court may assess a person's part of the estate 

44 without finding that the person engaged in bad faith, wrongdoing 

45 or frivolousness. 

46 Section 4. Subsection (2) of section 736.1005, Florida 

47 Statutes, is amended to read: 

48 

49 

736.1005 

( 2) __@J_ 

Attorney's fees for services to the trust.

When Whenever attorney's fees are to be paid from 

50 out of the trust pursuant to subsection (1) or s. 

51 736.1007(5)(a), or when the court assesses attorney's fees 

52 against a person's part of an estate under s. 733.106(4) 

53 involving a pourover will and the matter is interrelated with 

54 the trust but the person's part of the estate is insufficient to 

55 fully pay the assessment, the court, in its discretion, may 

56 direct from what part of the trust the fees shall be paid. All 

57 or any part of attorney's fees to be paid from the trust may be 

58 assessed against one or more persons' part of the trust in such 

59 proportions as the court finds to be just and proper. 

60 (b) The court in the exercise of its discretion may 

61 consider the following factors: 

62 1. The relative impact of an assessment or not on the 

63 estimated value of each person's part of the trust; 

64 2. The amount of attorney's fees to be assessed against a 

65 person's part of the trust; 

66 3. The extent to which a person whose part of the trust is 

67 to be assessed, individually or through counsel, actively 

68 participated in the proceeding; 

281593 - h0343-line 653.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:02:32 PM 

Page 3 of 5 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 3 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 343 (2015) 

69 4. The potential benefit or detriment to a person's part 

70 of the trust expected from the outcome of the proceeding; 

71 5. The relative strength or weakness of the merits of the 

72 claims, defenses, or objections, if any, asserted by a person 

73 whose part of the trust is to be assessed; 

74 6. Whether a person whose part of the trust is to be 

75 assessed was a prevailing party with respect to one or more 

76 claims, defenses, or objections; 

77 7. Whether a person whose part of the trust is to be 

78 assessed unjustly caused an increase in the amount of attorney's 

79 fees incurred by the trustee or other persons in connection with 

80 the proceeding; and 

81 8. Any other relevant fact, circumstance or equity. 

82 (c) The court may assess a person's part of the trust 

83 without finding that the person engaged in bad faith, wrongdoing 

84 or frivolousness. 

85 Section 5. Subsection (2) of section 736.1006, Florida 

86 Statutes, is amended to read: 

87 736.1006 Costs in trust proceedings.-

88 (2) When Whenever costs are to be paid from out of the 

89 trust pursuant to subsection (1) or when the court assesses 

90 costs against a person's part of an estate under s. 733.106(4) 

91 involving a pourover will and the matter is interrelated with 

92 the trust but that person's part of the estate is insufficient 

93 to fully pay the assessment, the court, in its discretion, may 

94 direct from what part of the trust the costs shall be paid. All 

281593 - h0343-line 653.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:02:32 PM 

Page 4 of 5 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 3 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 343 (2015) 

95 or any part of costs to be paid from the trust may be assessed 

96 against one or more persons' part of the trust in such 

97 proportions as the court finds to be just and proper. The court 

98 in the exercise of its discretion may consider the factors set 

99 forth ins. 736.1005(2) as they relate to costs to be paid from 

100 the trust. 

101 

102 

103 T I T L E A M E N D M E N T 

104 Remove line 9 and insert: 

105 applicability; amending ss. 733.106, 736.1005, and 736.1006, 

106 F.S.; providing for payment of costs and attorney's fees in 

107 probate and trust proceedings from estate and trust assets; 

108 authorizing a court to assess any or all fees against the share 

109 of one or more persons in the estate or trust in a proportion 

110 found to be just and proper by the court; authorizing the court 

111 to consider certain factors in the exercise of its discretion; 

112 providing an effective date. 

281593 - h0343-line 653.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:02:32 PM 

Page 5 of 5 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 4 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 343 (2015) 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECTION 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WITHDRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Civil Justice Subcommittee 

2 Representative Moraitis offered the following: 

3 

4 Amendment 

5 Remove line 654 and insert: 

6 Section 3. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 

7 act, and except for this section which shall take effect upon 

8 this act becoming a law, this act shall take effect July 1, 

9 2015. 

646371 - h0343-line 654.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:03:19 PM 

Page 1 of 1 



J: 
m 
w 
co 
w 



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS 

BILL#: HB 383 Private Property Rights 
SPONSOR(S): Edwards, Perry and others 
TIED BILLS: None IDEN./SIM. BILLS: None 

REFERENCE ACTION 

1) Civil Justice Subcommittee 

2) Local Government Affairs Subcommittee 

3) Appropriations Committee 

4) Judiciary Committee 

SUMMARY ANALYSIS 

ANALYST 

/\'\ 

Malcoln} { [} 

STAFF DIRECTOR or 

BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF 
/) 

Bond Y ~~ 

The United States Supreme Court has held that a government cannot deny a land-use permit based on the 
landowner's refusal to accede to the government's demands to either turn over property or pay money to the 
government unless there is a nexus and rough proportionality between the government's demand on the 
landowner and the effect of the proposed land use. Governmental exactions of this type are unconstitutional. 
However, because unconstitutional exactions do not qualify as an unconstitutional taking, the Fifth 
Amendment's mandated remedy of just compensation to the landowner is not required. Instead, the remedy is 
determined by the law of the cause of action on which the property owner based his or her claim. 

Although federal law appears to provide a cause of action for unconstitutional exactions, it is unclear whether 
current Florida law that provides a cause of action for unconstitutional takings also applies to unconstitutional 
exactions by local and state governments and whether monetary damages would be available in such cases. 

The bill creates a cause of action to recover monetary damages for landowners where local and state 
governmental entities impose conditions that rise to the level of unconstitutional exactions. 

The bill also amends the Bert J. Harris, Jr., Private Property Act to provide that only those property owners 
whose real property is the subject of the action by a governmental entity may bring suit under the act and to 
provide that the safe harbor provisions for settlement agreements between a property owner and governmental 
entity apply regardless of when the settlement agreement was entered. 

The fiscal impact of the bill on state and local governments is indeterminate. 

The bill has an effective date of July 1, 2015. 

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives. 
STORAGE NAME. h0383 CJS.DOCX 
DATE: 2/9/2015 



1 

FULL ANALYSIS 

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS 

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES: 

Private Property Rights and Unconstitutional Exactions 

In 2013, the United State Supreme Court, in Koontz v. St. Johns River Water Management District, 133 
S. Ct. 2586 (2013), held that a government cannot deny a land-use permit based on the landowner's 
refusal to accede to the government's demands to either turn over property or pay money to the 
government unless there is a nexus and rough proportionality between the government's demand on 
the landowner and the effect of the proposed land use. 

The property owner in Koontz owned land consisting primarily of wetlands. He sought to develop a 
portion of his property, and as part of his proposal offered to grant a substantial conservation easement 
to the St. Johns River Water Management District (district). The district rejected his proposal, and 
informed him that his permit would be denied unless he agreed to either scale back his planned 
development and give the district a larger conservation easement or maintain the proposal, but hire 
contractors to make improvements to separate land owned by the district. The district offered to 
consider alternative approaches as well. The property owner believed the district's demands were 
unreasonable, and he sued under s. 373.617, F.S., which allows property owners to recover money 
damages in the event of a government action related to land-use permitting that is an unreasonable 
exercise of the state's police power that constitutes a taking without just compensation. 

The Supreme Court's decision regarding the constitutionality of the exaction in Koontz was an 
extension of two prior cases, Nollan v. California Coastal Commission, 483 U.S. 825 (1987) and Dolan 
v. City of Tigard, 512 U.S. 374 (1994), in which the Court held that a unit of government may not 
condition the approval of a land-use permit on the owner's relinquishment of a portion of his property 
unless there is a "nexus" and "rough proportionality" between the government's demand and the effects 
of the proposed land use. 1 

These holdings are based on the doctrine of unconstitutional conditions, which prohibits the 
government from denying a benefit to a person because he or she exercises or vindicates a 
constitutional right. 2 The Court explained that "[e]xtortionate demands for property in the land-use 
permitting context run afoul of the [Fifth Amendment] Takings Clause not because they take property 
but because they impermissibly burden the right not to have property taken without just 
compensation. "3 

Of particular significance to the bill, the Koontz court found that while the government's conditions 
unconstitutionally burdened the landowner's Fifth Amendment rights, no constitutional taking has 
occurred that qualifies for the constitutionally mandated remedy of just compensation to the landowner. 
Instead, the Court left it up to the states to determine what remedies would be available to a landowner 
who has been subject to an unconstitutional demand but no actual taking has occurred.4 The Court 
explained: 

Where the permit is denied and the condition is never imposed, nothing has been taken. 
While the unconstitutional conditions doctrine recognizes that this burdens a 
constitutional right, the Fifth Amendment mandates a particular remedy-just 
compensation-only for takings. In cases where there is an excessive demand but no 

Dolan, 512 U.S. at 386, 391; No/lan, 483 U.S. at 837. 
2 Koontz, 133 S. Ct. at 2594. 
3 /d. at 2596. 
4 /d. at 2597. 
STORAGE NAME· h0383 CJS DOCX 
DATE· 2/9/2015 

PAGE: 2 



5 /d. 
6/d. 

taking, whether money damages are available is not a question of federal constitutional 
law but of the cause of action-whether state or federal-on which the landowner relies. 5 

Consequently, the Court left unanswered the question of whether the landowner in Koontz could 
recover damages for unconstitutional conditions claims predicated on the Takings Clause because the 
landowner's claim was based on Florida law, s. 373.617, F.S. 6 Specifically, because s. 373.617, F.S., 
allows for damages when a state agency's action is "an unreasonable exercise of the state's police 
power constituting a taking without just compensation" it is a question of state law as to whether that 
provision covers an unconstitutional conditions claims? 

Remedies for Unconstitutional Conditions Claims 

Currently, while federal law provides a cause of action for unconstitutional conditions claims, 8 it is 
unclear what type of damages would be recoverable under federal law. As noted above, s. 373.617, 
F.S., allows for monetary damages to be awarded to a landowner when a circuit court determines a 
state agency's action is "an unreasonable exercise of the state's police power constituting a taking 
without just compensation." However, because this provision applies to takings, it is unclear whether it 
provides a cause of action for monetary damages for unconstitutional conditions claims, also known as 
unconstitutional exactions, predicated on the Takings Clause where no taking has occurred. 9 

The bill creates s. 70.45, F.S., to provide a cause of action and monetary damages for landowners in 
cases of unconstitutional exactions by governmental entities. An "unconstitutional exaction" is defined 
as 

a permitting condition imposed by a governmental entity on a property owner's 
proposed use of real property that lacks an essential nexus to a legitimate state interest 
and is not roughly proportionate to the harm the governmental entity seeks to avoid, 
minimize, or mitigate. 

The bill defines the terms "government entity" consistent with the current definition inch. 70, F.S., 10 and 
it defines the terms "property owner" and "real property" consistent with the amended definitions in ch. 
70, F.S. 11 

The bill provides that a property owner may bring an action to recover damages caused by an 
unconstitutional exaction in addition to any other remedies that may be available in law or equity. A 
property owner who prevails in such an action may be awarded prejudgment interest, reasonable 
attorney fees and costs, and compensatory damages. 12 

7 /d. at 2597-98. 
8 See O'Hare Truck Serv., Inc. v. City of Northlake, 518 US. 712 (1996) 
9 Article I, s. 21 of the Florida Constitution provides "The courts shall be open to every person for redress of any injury, 
and justice shall be administered without sale, denial or delay." "This provision was intended to give life and vitality to the 
maxim: "For every wrong there is a remedy."' Swain v. Curry, 595 So. 2d 168, 174 (Fla. 1st DCA 1992) (citing Holland v. 
Mayes, 155 Fla. 129, 19 So. 2d 709 (1944)). 
10 Section 70.001 (3)(c) defines "government entity" to include "an agency of the state, a regional or a local government 
created by the State Constitution or by general or special act, any county or municipality, or any other entity that 
independently exercises governmental authority." It does not include the United States or any of its agencies, or an 
agency of the state or a local government when exercis1ng the powers of the United States or any of its agencies through 
a formal delegation of federal authority. 
11 See Limitation of Application discussion below. 
12 Compensatory damages, also called actual damages, are awarded to compensate and make whole the prevailing party 
for any damages incurred as a result of the defendant's conduct. 
STORAGE NAME· h0383.CJS.DOCX PAGE: 3 
DATE: 2/9/2015 



Bert J. Harris, Jr., Private Property Rights Protection Act 

Limitation of Application of the Bert J. Harris, Jr., Private Property Rights Protection Act 

In 1995, the Florida Legislature enacted the Bert J. Harris, Jr., Private Property Rights Protection Act13 

(act) to provide a new cause of action for private property owners whose real property has been 
inordinately burdened by a specific action 14 of a governmental entity that may not rise to the level of a 
"taking" under the State or Federal Constitutions. 15 The inordinate burden can apply to either an 
existing use of real property or a vested right to a specific use. 16 

For the purposes of the act, the term "property owner" is defined as "the person who holds legal title to 
the real property at issue."17 "Real property" is likewise defined as "land and includes any 
appurtenances and improvements to the land, including any other relevant real property in which the 
property owner had a relevant interest."18 

The bill amends the definitions of "property owner" and "real property" in the act to provide that only 
those property owners whose real property is the subject of the action by a government entity may 
bring suit under the act. 19 

Safe Harbor Provisions for Settlement Agreements 

Currently, the act provides for a mandatory presuit procedure in which a property owner must present 
written notice of his or her claim to the governmental entity at least 150 days prior to filing a lawsuit. 
During that 150 day period, 20 the governmental entity must make a written settlement offer. 21 

If the parties enter into a settlement agreement that would have the effect of a modification, variance, or 
a special exception to the application of a rule, regulation, or ordinance that would otherwise apply to 
the property, the agreement must protect the public interest served by the regulations at issue and be 
the appropriate relief necessary to prevent the regulation from inordinately burdening the property.22 

If the settlement agreement would have the effect of contravening the application of a statute that 
would otherwise apply to the property, the parties must file an action in the circuit court seeking 
approval of the settlement agreement "to ensure that the relief granted protects the public interest 
served by the statute ... and is the appropriate relief necessary to prevent the governmental regulatory 
effort from inordinately burdening the real property."23 These safe harbor provisions allows settlement 
terms that provide for the property to be immune from the application of contrary statues and local 
regulations. 24 

Recently, a Florida appellate court affirmed the denial of a settlement agreement between a property 
owner and governmental entity on the grounds that the parties failed to enter into the settlement 
agreement within the 150-day period provided in the act and after the property owner had filed a lawsuit 

13 Chapter 95-181, L.O.F.; codified ass. 70.001, F.S. 
14 Section 70.001 (3)(d), F.S., provides that the "term 'action of a governmental entity' means a specific action of a 
~overnmental entity which affects real property, including action on an application or permit." 

5 Sections 70.001(1) and (9), F.S. 
16 Section 70 001 (2), F.S. 
17 Section 70.001(2)(f), F.S. The term does not include a governmental entity. 
18 Section 70.001 (2)(g), F.S. 
19 See Op. Att'y Gen. Fla. 95-78 (1995) (stating that the act "does not provide recovery of damages to property that is not 
the subject of a governmental action or regulation, but which may have incidentally suffered a diminution in value or other 
loss as a result of the regulation of the subject property") 
20 If the property is classified as agricultural, the time-period is reduced to 90 days. 
21 Section 70.001(4)(c), F.S. 
22 Section 70.001(4)(d), F.S. 
23 /d. 
24 /d. 
STORAGE NAME· h0383.CJS.DOCX PAGE: 4 
DATE: 2/9/2015 



under the act,25 The court's ruling, in effect, limits the safe harbor provision in the act to only those 
settlement agreements made within the time-frame specified in the act. 

The bill amends the act to provide that the safe harbor provisions for settlement agreements between a 
property owner and governmental entity apply regardless of when the settlement agreement was 
entered so long as it fully resolves all claims. 

Legislative Declaration of Construction 

Section 70.80, F.S., currently declares that "ss. 70.001 and 70.5f6 have separate and distinct bases, 
objectives, applications, and processes." It further states that it is "the intent of the Legislature that ss. 
70.001 and 70.51 are not to be construed in pari materia.'127 

The bill adds the new created s. 70.45, F.S., to the legislative declaration that these sections have 
separate and distinct objectives, applications, and processes." It also adds s. 70.45, F.S., to the 
statement of legislature intent that ss. 70.001 and 70.51 are not to be construed in pari materia. 

B. SECTION DIRECTORY: 

Section 1 amends s. 70.001, F.S., related to private property rights protection. 

Section 2 creates s. 70.45, F.S., related to governmental exactions. 

Section 3 amends s. 70.80, F.S., related to construction of ss. 70.001 and 70.51, F.S. 

Section 4 provides an effective date of July 1, 2015. 

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT 

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT: 

1. Revenues: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on state revenues. 

2. Expenditures: 

Indeterminate. See Fiscal Comments below. 

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS: 

1. Revenues: 

The bill does not appear to have any impact on local government revenues. 

2. Expenditures: 

Indeterminate. See Fiscal Comments below. 

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR: 

The bill does not appear to have a direct economic impact on the private sector. 

25 Collier County v. Hussey, 147 So. 3d 35 (Fla. 2d DCA 2014). 
26 Section 70.51 is the Florida Land Use and Environmental Dispute Resolution Act, which provides a mechanism for 
resolving land use disputes that involve development orders or governmental enforcement actions . 
27 In pari material is a principle of statutory construction used by the courts. It requires related statutes to be construed 
together "so that they will illuminate each other and are harmonized." Grant v. State, 832 So. 2d 770, 773 (Fla. 5th DCA 
2002). 
STORAGE NAME. h0383 CJS DOCX PAGE: 5 
DATE. 2/9/2015 



D. FISCAL COMMENTS: 

Section 1 of the bill limits causes of action against government entities, and thus appears to have a 
positive fiscal impact on state and local governments. In that lawsuits under s. 70.001, F.S., by 
neighboring properties are uncommon, the fiscal impact is anticipated to be minimal. 

Section 2 creates a specific cause of action related to unconstitutional takings. The measure of 
damages of the state law cause of action for such lawsuits is an issue currently pending before the 
Florida Supreme Court, and so it is possible that Section 2 of the bill may provide a different measure 
of damages. However, it is clear that, if there is a cost to a government, the cost is voluntary. A state or 
local government entity who does not insist on unconstitutional exactions will in turn never have to pay 
damages for an unconstitutional exaction. 

The Subcommittee has not received a fiscal impact estimate from any affected party, and thus these 
comments are speculative. 

Ill. COMMENTS 

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES: 

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision: 

The bill does not appear to require counties or municipalities to take an action requiring the 
expenditure of funds, reduce the authority that counties or municipalities have to raise revenue in the 
aggregate, nor reduce the percentage of state tax shared with counties or municipalities. 

2. Other: 

None. 

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY: 

The bill does not appear to create a need for rulemaking or rulemaking authority. 

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS: 

None. 

IV. AMENDMENTS/ COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES 

n/a 

STORAGE NAME h0383.CJS.DOCX 
DATE· 2/9/2015 

PAGE: 6 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 383 2015 

1 A bill to be entitled 

2 An act relating to private property rights; amending 

3 s. 70.001, F.S.; revising the terms "property owner" 

4 and "real property"; providing that any settlement 

5 agreement reached between an owner and a governmental 

6 entity applies so long as the agreement resolves all 

7 issues; creating s. 70.45, F.S.; providing legislative 

8 intent regarding unconstitutional exactions by 

9 governmental entities; defining terms; creating a 

10 cause of action for damages caused by unconstitutional 

11 exaction of property; authorizing the award of 

12 prejudgment interest and attorney fees and costs, and 

13 compensatory damages under certain circumstances; 

14 amending s. 70.80, F.S.; specifying that an action for 

15 unconstitutional exaction is not to be construed in 

16 pari materia with certain other actions; providing an 

17 effective date. 

18 

19 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida: 

20 

21 Section 1. Paragraphs (f) and (g) of subsection (3) and 

22 paragraphs (c) and (d) of subsection (4) of section 70.001, 

23 Florida Statutes, are amended to read: 

24 70.001 Private property rights protection.-

25 (3) For purposes of this section: 

26 (f) The term "property owner" means the person who holds 

Page 1 of 6 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0383-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 383 

27 legal title to the real property that is the subject of the 

28 action by a governmental entity at issue. The term does not 

29 include a governmental entity. 

30 (g) The term "real property" means land and includes any 

2015 

31 appurtenances and improvements to the land, including any other 

32 relevant real property in which the property owner has ftacl a 

33 relevant interest. The term includes only parcels that are 

34 subject to the action by a governmental entity. 

35 ( 4) 

36 (c) During the 90-day-notice period or the 150-day-notice 

37 period, unless extended by agreement of the parties, the 

38 governmental entity shall make a written settlement offer to 

39 effectuate: 

40 1. An adjustment of land development or permit standards 

41 or other provisions controlling the development or use of land. 

42 2. Increases or modifications in the density, intensity, 

43 or use of areas of development. 

44 3. The transfer of developmental rights. 

45 4. Land swaps or exchanges. 

46 5. Mitigation, including payments in lieu of onsite 

47 mitigation. 

48 6. Location on the least sensitive portion of the 

4 9 property. 

50 7. Conditioning the amount of development or use 

51 permitted. 

52 8. A requirement that issues be addressed on a more 

Page 2 of 6 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0383-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T V E S 

HB 383 2015 

53 comprehensive basis than a single proposed use or development. 

54 9. Issuance of the development order, a variance, special 

55 exception, or other extraordinary relief. 

56 10. Purchase of the real property, or an interest therein, 

57 by an appropriate governmental entity or payment of 

58 compensation. 

59 11. No changes to the action of the governmental entity. 

60 

61 If the property owner accepts ~ tfie settlement offer, either 

62 before or after filing an action, the governmental entity may 

63 implement the settlement offer by appropriate development 

64 agreement; by issuing a variance, special exception, or other 

65 extraordinary relief; or by other appropriate method, subject to 

66 paragraph (d). 

67 (d)1. When Whenever a governmental entity enters into a 

68 settlement agreement under this section which would have the 

69 effect of a modification, variance, or a special exception to 

70 the application of a rule, regulation, or ordinance as it would 

71 otherwise apply to the subject real property, the relief granted 

72 shall protect the public interest served by the regulations at 

73 issue and be the appropriate relief necessary to prevent the 

74 governmental regulatory effort from inordinately burdening the 

7 5 real property. 

76 2. When Whenever a governmental entity enters into a 

77 settlement agreement under this section which would have the 

78 effect of contravening the application of a statute as it would 

Page 3 of 6 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0383-00 



F L 0 R D A H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 383 

79 otherwise apply to the subject real property, the governmental 

80 entity and the property owner shall jointly file an action in 

81 the circuit court where the real property is located for 

2015 

82 approval of the settlement agreement by the court to ensure that 

83 the relief granted protects the public interest served by the 

84 statute at issue and is the appropriate relief necessary to 

85 prevent the governmental regulatory effort from inordinately 

86 burdening the real property. 

87 

88 This paragraph applies to any settlement reached between a 

89 property owner and a governmental entity regardless of when the 

90 settlement agreement was entered so long as the agreement fully 

91 resolves all claims asserted under this section. 

92 Section 2. Section 70.45, Florida Statutes, is created to 

93 read: 

94 70.45 Governmental exactions.-

95 (1) The Legislature recognizes that governmental entities 

96 may circumstantially impose conditions on private property which 

97 are unrelated and disproportionate to the harm caused by the use 

98 requested by the property owner. The Legislature further 

99 recognizes that such conditions may rise to a level constituting 

100 an unconstitutional exaction in contradiction of the State 

101 Constitution and United States Constitution unless the relevant 

102 governmental entity can demonstrate that the conditions imposed 

103 have an essential nexus to a legitimate state interest and rough 

104 proportionality to the harm of the proposed use that the 

Page 4 of 6 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0383-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 383 2015 

105 governmental entity is seeking to avoid, minimize, or mitigate. 

(2) As used in this section, the term: 106 

107 (a) "Governmental entity" has the same meaning as provided 

108 in s. 70.001 (3) (c). 

109 (b) "Property owner" has the same meaning as provided in 

110 s. 70.001 (3) (f). 

111 (c) "Real property" has the same meaning as provided in s. 

112 70.001(3)(g). 

113 (d) "Unconstitutional exaction" means a permitting 

114 condition imposed by a governmental entity on a property owner's 

115 proposed use of real property that lacks an essential nexus to a 

116 legitimate state interest and is not roughly proportionate to 

117 the harm the governmental entity seeks to avoid, minimize, or 

118 mitigate. 

119 (3) In addition to other remedies available in law or 

120 equity, a property owner may bring an action under this section 

121 to recover damages caused by an unconstitutional exaction. 

122 (4) A property owner who prevails in an action under this 

123 section is entitled to an award of prejudgment interest and 

124 reasonable attorney fees and costs, in addition to other 

125 compensatory damages. 

126 Section 3. Section 70.80, Florida Statutes, is amended to 

127 read: 

128 70.80 Construction of ss. 70.001, 70.45, and 70.51.-It is 

129 the express declaration of the Legislature that ss. 70.001~ 

130 70.45, and 70.51 have separate and distinct bases, objectives, 

Page 5 of 6 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb0383-00 



FLORIDA H 0 U S E 0 F R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

HB 383 

131 applications, and processes. It is therefore the intent of the 

132 Legislature that ss. 70.001, 70.45, and 70.51 are not to be 

133 construed in pari materia. 

134 Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 2015. 

Page 6 of 6 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

2015 

hb0383-00 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 1 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 383 (2015) 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECTION (Y/N) 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WITHDRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Civil Justice Subcommittee 

2 Representative Edwards offered the following: 

3 

4 Amendment 

5 Remove lines 27-34 and insert: 

6 legal title to the real property that is the subject of and 

7 directly impacted by the action by a governmental entity at 

8 issue. The term does not include a governmental entity. 

9 (g) The term "real property" means land and includes any 

10 appurtenances and improvements to the land, including any other 

11 relevant real property in which the property owner has had a 

12 relevant interest. The term includes only parcels that are the 

13 subject of and directly impacted by the action by a governmental 

14 entity. 

621959 - h0383-line 0027.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:09:59 PM 

Page 1 of 1 



1111111111111~1111111111111 

Amendment No. 2 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 383 (2015) 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION 

ADOPTED (Y/N) 

ADOPTED AS AMENDED 

ADOPTED W/0 OBJECTION 

FAILED TO ADOPT 

WITHDRAWN 

OTHER 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

(Y/N) 

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Civil Justice Subcommittee 

2 Representative Edwards offered the following: 

3 

4 Amendment 

5 Remove lines 95-121 and insert: 

6 (1) If governmental entities impose conditions on private 

7 property which are unrelated and disproportionate to the harm 

8 caused by the use requested by the property owner, such 

9 conditions may rise to a level constituting an unconstitutional 

10 exaction in contradiction of the State Constitution and United 

11 States Constitution unless the relevant governmental entity can 

12 demonstrate that the conditions imposed have an essential nexus 

13 to a legitimate public purpose and rough proportionality to the 

14 harm of the proposed use that the governmental entity is seeking 

15 to avoid, minimize, or mitigate. Where unconstitutional 

16 exactions exist in Florida, a cause of action for damages is 

17 created. 

846659 - h0383-line 0095.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:10:53 PM 

Page 1 of 2 



1111111111111111111111111111 

Amendment No. 2 

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT 

Bill No. HB 383 (2015) 

18 (2) As used in this section, the term: 

19 (a) "Governmental entity" has the same meaning as provided 

20 in s. 70.001 (3) (c). 

21 (b) "Property owner" has the same meaning as provided in 

22 s. 70.001 (3) (f). 

23 (c) "Real property" has the same meaning as provided in s. 

24 70.001(3) (g). 

25 (d) "Unconstitutional exaction" means a condition imposed 

26 by a governmental entity on a property owner's proposed use of 

27 real property that lacks an essential nexus to a legitimate 

28 public purpose and is not roughly proportionate to the harm the 

29 governmental entity seeks to avoid, minimize, or mitigate. 

30 (3) In addition to other remedies available in law or 

31 equity, a property owner may bring an action in a court of 

32 competent jurisdiction under this section to recover damages 

33 caused by an unconstitutional exaction. 

34 

846659 - h0383-line 0095.docx 

Published On: 2/9/2015 6:10:53 PM 

Page 2 of 2 


